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BREHER BEtE ERAR

Devoted to new energy Contributing to Society Benefiting mankind

B #Z Target

BREH B A AR

Pursuing excellence Leading the development of new energy
B1EE Value
ASHT HMELR

Leveraging talents to full play Win-win in harmony
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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial data
(expressed in HK$000)

Turnover
Gross profit
Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company
Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation
Total borrowings
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Average capital employed (note 6)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Staff costs
Net asset attributable to owners of
the Company per share (HK$) (note /)

Bt % Financial ratios

JERE AR (H7t2) Return on capital employed (note 2)

BN K (M5t 3) Current ratio (note 3)

REL KR (i 4) Quick ratio (note 4)

BELER(MES) Gearing ratio (note 5)

BifsT Note:

I BRART YN 3 L. Net asset attributable
ZIN = BEA - BEf to owners of the
ElEFEEE EinkEm RIABE Company per share

1 ERERDR - MBRAERoF - THERER 2 Return on capital

EREHNRT (Hiits) employed

3. RBHE = RBEE + RBAR 3. Current ratio

4 EBLE = (hPEE-HE) + nDAR 4 Quickratio

5 BfEtE - EEgE = ARFE 5. Gearing ratio

BEA
[ElbEE
6. THERRER = [(BREE+FRPEN)+ 6. Average capital

(LFRREE+ LFARDEN)) -2

employed

2013

1,329,644
24,077

39,022

181,386
1,954,706
1,893,789
3,028,509

30,459
89,824

0477

6.0%
1.35
[.15

103%

Equity attributable
to owners

of the Company

Earnings before interest, tax,  ~

2014 2015
2,699,950 2,616,696
263,275 244910
90,894 75,469
220,340 195,490
1,714,807 1,624,876
2,267,778 2,183,518
3,050,561 2,906,355
16,095 7,530
98,163 89,246
0519 0.500
72% 6.7%
[.25 1.13
1.07 0.99
76% 74%
Number of

~—  issued shares

at year end

Average capital

depreciation and amortisation

Current assets

(Current assets - Inventories) -

Total borrowings

employed (note 6)
Current liabilities
Current liabilities

Equity attributable
to owners of the
Company

[(Total equity + non-current borrowing) +

(last year total equity + last year non-current borrowing)] = 2
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BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, the business performance of China
Energine International (Holdings) Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “"Group"”) for the year ended 3| December 2015 is
summarised in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS SUMMARY

As of 31 December 2015, the Group's turnover for the year 2015 amounted
to HK$2,616.70 million as compared to that of 2014 of HK$2,699.95 million,
representing HK$83.25 million, or 3%, decrease in turnover; the profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$75.47 million
as compared to that of 2014 of HK$90.89 million, representing HK$15.42
million, or 7%, decrease in profit. The turnover for the year comprised sale
of wind energy related products of HK$1,893.04 million, sale of electricity
generated from wind farm of HK$23.56 million, sale of rare-earth permanent
magnet motor products of HK$34.29 million, sale of energy storage and
related products of HK$555.55 million and sales of HK$110.26 million related
to telecommunication business whereas that of the last year comprised sale
of wind energy related products of HK$2,398.90 million, sale of electricity
generated from wind farm of HK$25.45 million, sale of rare-earth permanent
magnet motor products of HK$45.90 million, sale of energy storage and
related products of HK$175.07 million and sales of HK$54.63 million related
to telecommunication business.

There was no significant variation of tumover for the year from that of last
year in that the decrease in sales of the Group's wind energy related products
by HK$505.86 million, or 21% year-on-year, equivalent to decrease in sales in
2015 by 49 sets of 2MW excitation wind turbine units, as offset by increase in
sales of energy storage and related products by HK$380.48 million, or 217%
year-on-year with i) increase in terms of 70 MW relating to photovoltaic
power equipment as well as i) newly sales of 158 sets of new energy batteries
in 2015. The decrease in profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company was, inter alia, attributable to i) decrease in subsidies granted by the
PRC government authorities for telecommunication business and ii) a gain on
deemed disposal of interest in an associate upon capital contributions made
by other joint venture parties thereof in 2014. The return on capital employed
for the year and 2014 are 6.7% and 7.2% respectively, representing 6.9%

decrease.



B NETER

WIS AEBERENEEEZTNBEREN
ERERMALAESS  TEES  BEs-
EERENANESED  FEREMSLRE
Ef ReRWNEEM8L a2 EAS
FRFIOB U EENBEEHEY - KR
TBRRCEFRT RETEARSHER
HEER - AEBTHEERRERRER
- EENRBEZED HEERL UEE
EHITE IR R A 2 A E AR - BBE
MREE - RTINS 12 B BK A R 2R 2% = Ak M it e
9 RARANE  BREHKE  BBAAR
TEEAKFENEREARARE  BRSER
FHEAFER R MW E B E RE#)
HEAE  WERMARLES - BREBNEY
RIFBERE - FOXE  LEESE 8RR
RERE  NEREZRER  MOELEE
BT - MG MmiEnE - Bl AEE
EERBEANSARSEN  BEARSNE
B HRARTARET « BREED - &
BHEMMFBRT - 2R IZCHRALEL
W HEANBNER  BERNBEKHEE -
TEAEBETRABHEA -

£ 1E)
BUSINESS REVIEW

Business of Wind Energy

In 2015, the directdrive wind turbine developed by the Group with
proprietary intellectual property rights features its strengths: simple structure,
high reliability, high efficiency and low operation and maintenance costs. In
the course of elimination in terms of production capacity, enhancement of
technology and quality, the wind energy market in China entered into the
phase of rational development with growth rate of over 10% per annum, the
Group is competing with about 30 enterprises staying after the elimination. In
winning highly regarded recognition from wind farm developers in the industry,
the Group continued to give full play to the advantages of technology, quality
and service of Aerospace directdrive wind turbines. On this basis, the Group
capitalised on its products’ leading edge and achieved cost control by adopting
the strategy of technology enhancement and batch production through
research and development, thereby achieving high supply chain performance
and enhanced cost effectiveness to proactively address challenges. Through
Inner Mongolia Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant, and Gansu Wind
Turbine General Assembling Plant, the Group realised batch productions of
a number of self-developed models (especially 2MW excitation magnetic
directdrive wind turbine), and adopted the strategy of establishing good
relationship with several provincial and autonomous regions’ governments
to gain their supports and leveraging on provincial and autonomous regions’
quotas for wind energy to obtain more wind resources in seeking more
production orders for wind turbines, thereby increasing our market share.
At present, the Group has considerable wind energy resources in various
major wind power bases planned by the State, including Wulatehougi in Inner
Mongolia, Jiuguan City and Wuwei City in Gansu, Ningde City in Fujian, Tieling
City and Kaiyuan City in Liaoning, Suihua City in Heilongjiang and Tangshan
City in Hebei, effective pushing sales of wind turbines and bringing in promising

income to the Group continually.
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In 2015, the marketing strategy was that of exchanging resources for orders,
developing and maintaining key areas and key customers, plus that of
participating in market competition through open market bidding to expand

the sales regions and increase our sales efforts.

The Group had formulated market development strategies for key regions
and key customers. As of to date, in terms of customers, the Group has
established more stable and secure business relationship with large power
companies which have become our key customers. In terms of sales regions,
the Group has made substantial progress in the key regions of Inner Mongolia,

Gansu and Liaoning, paving a solid foundation for future developments.

Since the directdrive wind turbines are characterised by gearless drive, the
use of low-speed large-torque generators, full-power convertor and strong
resistance to grid voltage fluctuations, their advantages include low wear and
tear, high efficiency of electricity generation, small size, light weight, easy to
maintain and low operating cost when compared with the traditional wind
turbines. As such, the directdrive wind turbines, in particular, the |.5SMW and
2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbines being launched mainly
by the Group have visible optimism in the market. In addition, the AC-DC-
AC total inverter grid-connection technology employed by directdrive wind
turbines can allow the grid companies to meet the standards under the
“Design regulations for grid-connection technology of large-scale wind farms”
issued by National Energy Administration in 201 |, which provides a series of
requirements such as low-voltage ride-through, grid compatibility and power

test, bringing rare opportunities to the Group's wind turbine business.
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In 2015, the Group completed the assembling, commissioning and deliveries
of a total of 175 sets of 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines, including
50 sets to Jingyuan Project in Gansu, 75 sets to Wuwei Hongshagang Project
in Gansu, 25 sets to Songshantan Project in Tianzhu and 25 sets to Wuwei
Complementary Wind and Solar Energy Project, as well as 34 sets of |.5SMW
excitation magnetic wind turbines to Guazhou Project in Gansu and 31 sets of
|.SMW double-fed wind turbines to United Power Project. Moreover, || sets
of 1.5SMW wind turbine blades were completed and delivered with closing of
sales thereof. In addition, 4 sets of 900KW excitation magnetic wind turbines

were exported. The sales recorded were slightly higher than expected.

~w

Research and Development of Technology

In 2014, the research and development of 3MW permanent magnet
directdrive wind turbine were being conducted. In January 2015, we passed
the whole-turbine design review made by the expert panel of China Academy
of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT") and could proceed prototype
trial production. In December, the hoisting of engineering prototype was
completed in Daxipo wind farm in Xinghe County, Inner Mongolia. As such,
the Group laid a solid foundation for the development and manufacture
of wind turbine units with higher power to cater for all kinds of complex
environments in different regions on land and sea. With a sleek, beautiful and
graceful appearance design, the wind turbine not only minimises air friction of
the unit, but also increases the overall aerodynamic performance and reduces
the load of parts and components with lower production cost. The unit
features a rotary of 120m in diameter and a wheel centre of 95m in height,
allowing the wind energy utilisation to reach over 97%. Besides its high power,
this wind turbine has innovative design on safety and maintainability, making

readiness for managing in attracting more customers’ appeal.
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In December 2015, the Group officially completed the purchase of 100%
equity in Shanghai Hanli Machine Tool Co. Ltd. from Long March Launch
Vehicle Industry Co. Ltd, a subsidiary of CALT, where the Group owned
the related rights as to the technology and knowhow of |.5SMW excitation
magnet directdrive wind turbine and 2MW permanent-magnet directdrive
wind turbine researched at the purchase price of RMB80.88 million. This
transaction also enabled the Group poised for the upgrade to 2MW excitation
magnetic directdive turbine and the research and development of 3 to SMW

permanent magnet directdrive wind turbine strategically.
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Energy Storage Business

Whilst maintaining the leading position in wind energy technology, the Group
has been actively nurturing a new core major business from the research and
development of a series of wind and solar energy storage products and a
series of distributed energy storage system products and extends the industrial
chain to a distributed energy renewal solutions by combining wind energy,
solar energy and energy storage subtly in providing customers with more

flexible and reliable energy solutions.

In May 2012, the Group initiated the research and development on graphene
materials and lithium battery of high storage capacity. Cooperative research
and development agreements were signed with international and domestic
renowned experts and teams in order to achieve mass production of high
quality graphene by leveraging on the graphene extraction technology
mastered by them and conducted research and development on new
graphene-based cathode material for batteries and high capacity lithium battery
in order to launch a series of energy storage products with an integrated
system based on high capacity lithium batteries. In 2013, international
renowned experts were invited by the Group to join the Energy Storage
Technology Research and Development Centre and effectively commenced
the research and development on graphene and energy storage system.

Material breakthroughs have been achieved in a number of technologies by

the Research and Development Centre.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited °



£
BUSINESS REVIEW

EMEE—RERRRESENERIEES
Mo FMAELEMARERENME - GEAER
BRBWSFAER : AK FEFRAERE
RELENTE - BEMEANERRERK— 7
BEEMME DA BBRESES  ZEHBER
REBTEMEEEITE  HETAAERHE
Ao KA FNERTHESMEREKE
P RETEERARERRANEDERRSR
MFEGERGHERE  EPEEENEANE
MEEHEBHLEER SR HEER
—RERAELR 130% - RIEEENTHHMER
HWERELL —RENZ30% - ZERBERE
KETEIRE R ZGH - AEERMAETHE
WrERRMEL: - HERAALSBIER -

R - XEE—FENBEBFEENEA T
FEERERS  ZERAUBRREAEAET
HBRAY  SEMEERNER  BIEM
B BEARMRS  ERAUMHREE-

FEGXERER(EE) ARAT ® 2015 F K

A lithium iron phosphate battery for application in wind turbines of variable
pitch has been developed. Applying this battery in assembling battery packs
of variable pitch could enable the packs not to be replaced for 5 years.
Meanwhile, the anode and cathode materials and electrolyte being researched
and developed in the laboratory have formed a dynamic lithium iron
phosphate battery of excellent performance, which will be applied to electric
cars and electric bicycles, developing a large-capacity energy storage system.
In relying on our edges in electrical control and system integration, a battery
management system with container-type energy storage system and a grid
connection device for the energy storage system have been developed, where
the lithium iron phosphate battery utilised in the energy storage battery has
a high energy ratio and long utilisation life. Its energy ratio amounts to 130%
of those of commercial batteries for general usage, and the electrical energy
released by battery of the same weight is 30% more than an ordinary battery.
The product will be utilised in the control system relating to recovery of
rocket parafoils in supplying electrical energy for the recovery of satellites and

rockets in its employment in military areas.

Meanwhile, another new type of street lighting system with complementary
wind energy and solar energy based on a lithium battery energy storage system
has been developed. The scope of applications of the system may extend to
unmanned communication base stations, data transmission by high voltage
wire towers, boundary outposts, islands, remote areas with no electricity, etc.

and may even connect to power grid for electricity generation.
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Wind and solar power storage integration

The objective of the Group is to apply street lamps relating to wind and solar
power storage integration in many municipal lighting projects in cities. The
Phase One Project of the "Aerospace Demonstration Works relating to Wind
and Solar Power Projects” as supported by People’s Government of Wuwei
includes a 300MW wind energy project, a |80MW solar energy project and
a 30MW storage project, where the construction as to the 300MW wind
energy project and the 50MW photovoltaic power generation project had

already been commenced in full scope.
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Electric vehicles market

The Group is committed to the exploitation of electric vehicle market which
has achieved significant breakthroughs. The key technologies in electric vehicles
include vehicle, motor, battery, control and driving system as well as charging
point system, where main technical bottlenecks that restrict the development
of electric vehicles are the performances of batteries and vehicle control
system, which, however, are the Group's advantages and features. The Group
placed a strong emphasis on developing markets, such as Tangshan of Hebei,
Tongzhou district of Beijing, airport terminal of the capital, Shenyang and
Dalian of Liaoning, Wuwei and Lanzhou of Gansu. Efforts were also made to

grasp the development opportunities of new energy cars in the international

market.
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As the performance of high-capacity lithium batteries launched by the technical
team of the Company and CALT, and an interational expert reaches 160 h/
kg, exceeding market level of 130 h/kg, and the “four in one” vehicle control
system launched by us could place motor driver, vehicle controller, high
voltage distribution box and DC power switching device in one control box,
the batteries feature comprehensive functions and high level of integration.
The electric buses installed with the Group's batteries and control systems
are capable of running over 300 km mileage per charge. Exactly thanks to this
edge, the "Group has made major breakthroughs in promoting electric vehicle

market, in particular the market of electric buses and proven track record.
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In 2015, 100MW photovoltaic equipment was sold under the photovoltaic
and energy storage businesses of the Group, including 60MW equipment to
Kenuo Project and 40MW equipment to Nan Tong Project. A total of 158
sets of new energy battery were sold and delivered, including 100 sets to
public bus company in Meizhou, Guangdong, 50 sets to public bus company in

Tangshan and 8 sets to Beiqgi Foton Project.

The Group allied with Jinbei Group in Shenyang in the joint development,
production and sales of electric logistic vehicles. In February 2015, a sample
of pure electric light van with a loading capacity of one tonne was successfully
developed jointly by both parties. The content in seeking approval from the
Ministry of Industry and Telecommunication is being prepared for planning to

set up a joint-venture company in 2016 jointly.

In February 2016, the Company and Hefei Guoxuan High-Tech Power Energy
Co., Ltd. (“Guoxuan Hitech™), which ranked the third in the current power
battery industry, entered into a Strategic Cooperative Framework Agreement
(“Framework Agreement”). Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the
Company and Guoxuan Hitech will rely on the tremendous market of new
energy vehicles in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei and will establish a joint-venture
company in Tangshan, mainly engaging in research and development and
manufacture of power battery, research and development and application
of graphene material, as well as the application and promotion of energy
storage products in military and civil areas. The name of the joint-venture
company is Energine Guoxuan (Tangshan) New Energy Technology Co,, Ltd.
whose shareholding Guoxuan Hitech will hold 519 and China Energine 49%.
In assimilating the market demand, the power battery product capacity of
the joint-venture company is planned to reach | billion Ah. Both parties will
commence deep co-operation on research and development and application

of wind and photovoltaic electricity energy storage products.
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Both parties will jointly develop the graphene material and its application
technology, focusing on the applications of graphene in power battery as
driven by the market demand to build up more extensive development of the
industry chain and innovation platform in exploitation of new energy vehicle
market. The joint venture will strengthen the research and development and
application of military energy storage product, stressing on promoting power
battery application on military vehicles and military ships and boats. Both
parties will commence cooperation with new energy whole-vehicle enterprises
in development of Huachen Jinbei, Changan project in the first phase for joint
pursuit of research and development, market exploitation, and capital co-
operation on battery sets relating to electric logistic vehicles, transport vehicles,

taxi and other specialised vehicles.

Wind Farm Operations

The Group's wind farm operations comprise a wind farm controlled and
operated by the Group: the CASC Long Yuan (Benxi) wind farm of Liaoning
Benxi, installed with 29 sets of 850KW wind turbines with a capacity of
24,650KW; three wind farms invested and constructed by the Group: the
Jilin Tongyu wind farm of Jilin Longyuan, installed with 236 sets of 850KW
wind turbines with a capacity of 200,000KWV; the Jiangsu Rudong wind farm
of Jiangsu Longyuan, installed with 100 sets of |.5MW wind turbines with a

capacity of 150,000KW and the Datang Wanyuan Xinghe wind farm of Inner
Mongolia Xinghe, installed with 55 sets of 900KW directdrive wind turbines
with a capacity of 49,500KW.
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In addition, Energine Min Jian New Energy Investment Co,, Ltd, the Group's
associated company, formally engaging in offshore and land wind power
projects in eastern Fujian through its subsidiary, Yingkou Wind Power
Generation Co,, Ltd, secured market orders for the Group for the purchase

of 2MW directdrive wind turbine models produced by the Group.

Business of New Materials

Jiangsu Energine Technology Co. Ltd. (formerly Jiangsu Aerospace Wan Yuan
REPM Motor Co,, Ltd.), controlled and operated by the Group, is a high-tech
enterprise which specialises in the research and development, manufacture,
and sales of rare-earth permanent magnet gearless traction machines for
elevators. The "R &JR" branded rare-earth permanent magnet gearless
traction machines and its driving control system researched and developed
by the company itself had filled the technological gap of the domestic gearless

elevator sector.

Wouxi CASC Energine Xindali Electricity Co,, Ltd. ("Wuxi Generator Plant™),
the Group's associated company, is engaged in batch production of 900KW,
[.SMW and 2MW generators. Its self-developed |.5SMW excitation magnetic
directdrive wind power generator, with application of many new technologies,
was awarded the First Prize of Outstanding Contribution to Science and
Technology Progress in 201 | by CALT. Therefore, the Group is equipped
with the internal capacity to supply core parts and components of wind
turbines, including blades and generators, thereby reducing its reliance on
upstream suppliers of the wind turbine supply chain for purchasing generators
and controlling the supply risk of the wind turbine supply chain and production

cost.

The associate recorded sales revenue of HK$1.04 billion for the year 2015,

representing an increase of HK$704.35 million year-on-year.
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Business of Automotive Component Parts

Automotive engine management systems

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co., Ltd, a joint
venture, is a leading supplier in the domestic automotive electronic fuel
injection market with a stable market share, ranking the second nationwide

and supplies to almost all major domestic automobile manufacturers. As for

export sales, its products are sold to automobile manufacturers in Europe and
North America.
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The joint venture recorded sales revenue of HK$3.2 billion for the year 2015,

representing a decrease of HK$185.36 million year-on-year.

Quality, Environment, Occupational Health Management System

In the first half of 2015, the quality, environment, occupational health and
safety management system of the Company passed the audit and inspection
conducted by China Quality Certification Centre. The products, various
management activities and services of the Group comply with the state
laws, regulations and standards, as well as the requirements for sustainable
development, procuring more stable in product quality, environment improved
with more stunning ambience, occupational health becoming more secured
and higher repute on the brand, thereby pushing sustainable and
healthy development in the principal business of the Company
on new energy relating to wind energy, energy storage systems

for wind and solar energy.
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The Company formulated the objectives and management solutions relating

to environment and occupational health and safety for 2015.

M

Environment protection objective:

The Company's centralised waste disposal rate in the Beijing head
office was 100% and the recycling rate of hazardous wastes was 100%.
Domestic wastes are disposed of by Wanyuan Properties according
to the agreement. Hazardous wastes, such as toner cartridges and ink

cartridges, were recycled by designated manufacturers.

During maintenance of turbines, all employees of the Engineering
Department on the wind farm were required to carry a plastic bag
for centralised disposal of wastes, such as disposed cloths and head
bands, when entering the towers for inspection. The wastes were then
collected in the booster station in the waste disposal areas designated
by the wind farm owners for their centralised disposal. The centralised

disposal rate could reach 95%.

Adhering to reasonable utilisation and usage of public resources and
energy, the Company promoted the value of energy conservation and
the disgrace of wastage among its employees. Employees were required
to conserve public resources and energy to the full extent. A weekly
inspection system was established to ensure that expenses on resources
and energy consumption of the Beijing head office of the Company
were under strict control. Significant improvement in annual energy and
resources saving was made. According to the statistics of the Company,
total annual office power consumption per person decreased by 28.8%
compared with last year; annual consumption of bottled water per
person decreased by 26% compared with last year; total annual usage
of tap water per person decreased by 35.6% compared with last year;
total annual office consumption of paper per person decreased by
50.5% compared with last year; and total annual fuel consumption on

corporate cars decreased by 24.4% compared with last year.
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Improvement in protection and maintenance of work environment:

According to procedures on monitoring the environment performance
and surveillance control formulated by the Company, the Department
of External Liaison is responsible for the supervision, surveillance and
inspection of the implementation and effectiveness of environmental
objectives, indices and management solutions. By filling the
“environmental performance inspection record”, the Department of
External Liaison timely rectified the problems identified during inspection
with precautionary measures, and conducted satisfactory survey on

workplace environment.
Technical improvement measures and control on environmental safety:

In 2015, the Company formulated and refined several environment
protection and safety measures and replaced the light bulbs with
energy-efficient alternatives in the Beijing head office. Interior plants
were replaced to maintain a greener work environment. All the
obsolete wiring boards were discarded. Besides, smoking was fully
prohibited. These initiatives allowed the Company to realise its
philosophy of a clean office with “effective energy conservation, lower

energy consumption, less pollution and higher efficiency”.
Occupational health and safety objectives:

1. Accomplishing level two of corporate production safety

standard in Beijing

According to the rating
scheme of corporate
production safety

shdruAn standardisation for the

ik
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manufacturing industry in
Beijing, Beijing Energine
obtained the score of 892
PP ——— for production safety
' standards and was
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recognised as an enterprise

accomplishing level two of

corporate safety standard

in Beijing.
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The safety standardisation management system developed by
the Company basically complies with the requirements set out in
the “Universal Standard of the Two-Level Review of Production
Safety Standardisation for the Manufacturing Industry in Beijing”.
The responsibilities of all functional departments were specifically
defined. These departments carried out production safety
standardisation activities in accordance with their respective
terms of reference. Letters of commitment to production
safety objectives were signed by departments of all levels. A
safety responsibility system in relation to all functions and levels
was established and regular inspections and assessments were
conducted. The objectives and measures of production safety
were implemented. The Group regularly organised various forms
of cultural activities and training programmes in relation to safety
in order to equip its employees with a stronger safety awareness
and facilitate the initial establishment of a safety culture system

within the Group.

The Group had a comprehensive safety and risk identification and
evaluation for its operating activities. The control measures were
effective and the safety equipment and protective facilities were
in compliance with the requirements of national standards and
regulations. With satisfactory production safety conditions, the
Group developed a work permit system for its direct operation
process to strictly monitor and ensure safety during direct

operation.

In conclusion, during the standardization process of production
safety, the management of the Group stressed on its importance;
junior staff of all departments were allowed to play their roles
in production safety, the Group reinforced their knowledge,
awareness and operation skill on production safety in its pursuit

of better production safety standard.

In 2015, the Company had no fatality, serious injury and fire
accident and the number of staff with occupational disease was

Zero.
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path for employees.
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Customers

Our customers wish the Group to provide high-quality and efficient
wind energy equipment to further support the development of new
energy industry. The products we offered will be able to prevent the
environment from pollutions of wastes and noise and to prevent the

adverse impact of safety hazards.

The Group ensured our products reaching 100% passing rate on the
assurance test on departing plant for delivery, and wind turbines in
wind farms reaching an average utilization rate of 97%, i.e. high standard
requirements for the product’s quality. In parallel, the Group strictly
controlled the product quality of its suppliers in stringently executing the

supplier evaluation and control program.
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A dedicated service team is assigned to provide service and technical
support (i.e. installation, operation, maintenance) for each project. We
have set latest response times in ensuring that customers’ issues and
requirements are addressed promptly. Regular customer feedback
and satisfaction surveys are conducted where customer satisfaction is
required to be over 85%. We also guaranteed the supply of spare parts
to reduce the downtime occasioned from malfunction.

Suppliers

The Group adopted the assessment and dynamic appraisal system for
qualified suppliers, and established a qualified supplier management
system. We communicated with the R&D Centre, adjusted the
configuration of the design of master control system of wind turbines,
and reduced the procurement cost and enhanced the performance
of products on the precondition of no compromise on the assured
performance. We also attracted the participation of suppliers via tender

and selected cheaper master control systems.

Confirmation and Upgrade of and Compliance with

Applicable Laws and Regulations

In 2015, the Group updated the PRC Law on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes on the basis of the existing
List of Applicable Laws, Regulations and Other Requirements. The
applicability and assessment records of the law were also revised

accordingly.

The Company had arranged all its staff to study the law. Designated staff
were organised to study the updated law. The operation of the Group

was in compliance with the law.
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Management and Control of Material Risks

The Company formulated risk management and control measures to manage
three material risks, namely financing risks, operational risks and research and
development risks, all of which had been assessed by the Group in 2015.
These measures minimised the occurrence of material risks and achieved the

risk management and control targets. The material risks are set out below:

I.  Financing Risks

As the Group further expanded the batch production of wind turbines
and continued to invest in research and development projects, including
2MW enhanced wind turbine, 3MW permanent magnet directdrive
wind turbine, energy storage system and efficient battery, its working
capital was mainly funded through external financing, resulting in a
relatively high gearing ratio. As such, there were certain financial risks

and operation risks.
2.  Operation Risks

The quality reliability of the units and parts relating to new makes of
wind turbine units supplied from outsourced manufacturers needs time
for further inspection while the warranty periods of the contracts are
relatively long (5 years). This is an operation risk to a certain extent.
Given the remote locations of wind farms with some of the turbine
locations on hills with hilly landscape, there are transportation and
hoisting risks upon transportation into the farm and installation of
the units which are relatively larger and heavier. The above risks are
managed by the measures of the quality assurance system on one
hand, and through quality assurance terms with suppliers and insurance

mechanism in containing and shifting them away on the other hand.

3.  Research and Development Risks

To develop the 3MW permanent magnet directdrive wind turbine
which is of ultra-high power, key technology solutions and technology

level shall be enhanced.
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PROSPECTS

Due to consumption of huge amounts of traditional energy and demand for
environmental conservation, there will be basically no changes as to the rapid
growth of China's wind energy industry in the future. Currently, serious air
pollution has been spread as a national issue and becomes a stimulating or
driving force to the China government. The National Energy Administration
stated that, during the “Thirteenth-Five" period, the wind power is expected
to gradually change the status of “alternative energy” and rises to pose as the
China main energy structural body in the future, providing an assurance on the

sustainable and healthy development of wind power.

As hazy weather and air pollution are worsening in China, China government
has increased the support for development of clean energy as well as policy
support thereon. In 2015, the consumption of non-fossil fuels continued
to rise to 12%. As pointed out by the director of the National Energy
Administration of China, China has entered into a strategic restructuring of
energy consumption in shifting from a heavy reliance on fossil fuels to increase
in demand for non-fossil fuels. There is an accelerating replacement of fossil
fuels by non-fossil ones, ensuring a rapid growth of the Group's operating

results in 2016 and beyond.

Given that the Group has strong technical advantages in the application of
energy storage system and electric vehicle technology and operates in the
clean energy industry as staunchly encouraged by the supports from state
policies, the development of new technology and exploitation of new market
are focusing on the areas of wind and solar power storage integration as well
as electric vehicles intensively. In particular, photovoltaic power generation is
undoubtedly the fastest growing industry among those of non-fossil fuels. As at
the end of 2015, the total installed capacity of photovoltaic power generation
in China amounted to 43.18 million KW, surpassing Germany successfully
and ranking the top in the world in terms of installed capacity of photovoltaic
power generation. As such, the Group will strive to develop wind and solar
power storage integration and electric vehicles rapidly into new growth
points and core businesses of the Group in 2016 on the basis of established
market results by hinging on tremendous technical edges obtained in the said
sectors, grasping the opportunity of staunch assistances and supports from
China policies and devoting greater efforts in market exploitation with the
aim of adding momentum in the course of the rapid growth of the Group's

operational results.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had |9 employees (2014: 22 employees)
in the Hong Kong head office and 609 employees (2014: 629 employees)
in the Mainland China offices. Remuneration of employee is determined
according to individual employee's performance and the prevailing trends in
different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The Group also provides
Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to its employees. In addition,
discretionary performance bonus is available at the discretion of the Directors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Group Finance

In December 2014, the Group proceeded a placing of the existing shares
and subscription for new shares of 400 million shares, with the placing price
of HK$0.75 per share (whereas HK$0.91 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the last trading day of |5 December 2014), obtaining a net fund
of approximately HK$29 | million, which is mainly used for general working
capital and to finance projects on energy storage including the development of
wind and solar power storage integration and that on electric vehicle, thereby
improving the Group's capital structure and enhancing the market value. The
placing shares were placed to no less than six placees who are individual,
institutional or professional investors and whose ultimate beneficial owners are
(i) independent of and not connected with the Company and its connected
persons; and (i) third parties independent of and not acting in concert with
Astrotech Group Ltd. or any person acting in concert with it. As of March
2016, the fund has been used to the extent of HK$225.58 million, comprising
working capital for wind energy business in purchase of materials of wind
turbine of HK$175.00 million, working capital for telecommunication business
of HK$20.00 million, and dividend distribution of HK$30.58 million.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015 were
HK$1,624,876,000 (2014: HK$1,714,807,000), of which HK$180,583,000
(2014: HK$117,044,000) was floating-rate borrowings and the remaining was
fixed-rate. All borrowings of the Group were determined at market interest
rate. The Group has not issued any financial instruments for hedging or other

purposes.

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) as at 31 December
2015 was 74% (2014: 76%).

Financial Position

The capital structure of the Group at 3| December 2015 comprised total
equity of HK$2,249 million and non-current borrowings of HK$494 million
with borrowings expiring 2 to 5 years of HK$453 million and borrowings
expiring more than 5 years of HK$4 | million. This structure of net asset value
of HK$2,249 million coupling with gearing ratio of 74%, current ratio 1.13,
quick ratio 0.99 as well as bank and cash balance HK$300 million presented
a sound financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2015 with good

liquidity position.

Distribution to Shareholders

In August 2015, there was a dividend distribution of HK$30,583,000 in respect
of the 2014 final dividend of HKO.7 cent per ordinary share made to the

Company's shareholders.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, certain assets of the Group of HK$696,000 (2014:
HK$7,779,000) have been pledged to secure bank facility.
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Exchange and Other Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has issued no guarantee to a bank
in respect of a banking facility (31 December 2014: HK$38,029,000 with
HK$12,676,000 utilised) granted to an associate, and has issued no guarantee
to a third party (31 December 2014: HK$6,237,000).

APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and all
the staff members for their hard work and dedication during the year under

review.

By Order of the Board

Han Shuwang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Shuwang, aged 51, researcher, obtained his Bachelor degree
in Computer Science and Master degree in Economics and Management
from Tongji University and American Southwest University respectively. He
is a Visiting Professor of Tongji University and achieved the Space Award
from China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation (“CASC"). He
served as Deputy Division Chief, Deputy Chief Designer, Director Assistant
and Deputy Director with the Institute of Space Automation Control of
China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT") between 1988 and
1997, Deputy Director of Political Division of CALT in 1997, Director of
Administrative Office of CALT in 1998, General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan
Industry Corporation in 1999, and President Assistant of CALT in 2000. Since
2002, he has served as Vice President of CALT. In parallel, he has also been a
Director of Aisino Co., Ltd. (“Aisino”), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange for November 2000 to April 201 1. Possessing rich experiences
in strategic research and business administration, he was appointed as an
Executive Director and Vice-Chairman of the Company on 14 February 2006
and became the Chairman on 26 October 2007. He is also a Director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 48, graduated from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering
and obtained a MBA from the University of South Australia. During 1989 to
1998, he worked with Beijing Institute of Spacecraft System Engineering under
the China Academy of Space Technology (“CAST"), the Comprehensive
Planning Bureau of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China and then
the General Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as Assistant Engineer,
Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the President cum Deputy
Director of the President’s Office. In 1999, he, possessing extensive experience
in research and management, was appointed the Executive Director cum
Deputy General Manager of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited
(“CAI"). He has been appointed as Managing Director (later becoming
Executive Director cum General Manager) of the Company since May 1999
and became the Vice-Chairman and Executive Director of the Company
on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the

Group.
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Mr. Li Guang, aged 53, senior engineer, graduated from Tianjin University
with a Master degree in Industrial Automation. He had been the Designer
with the [4th Institute of CALT between 1991 and 1996, Division Chief of
Development Division, and General Manager of Beijing Long March Hi-tech
Corporation from 1996 to 2005. He acted as Deputy General Manager, and
General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation successively
from 1998. Mr. Li exhibits excellent experience in scientific research, product
development and business administration. He was appointed as an Executive
Director and a Deputy General Manager of the Company on 14 February
2006. On 31 March 2009, Mr. Li resigned from Deputy General Manager and
was re-designated as Non-executive Director on | April 2009 following his
appointment as the Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT.
In parallel, he has been a Director of Astrotech Group Ltd. (“Astrotech”), the
Company's controlling shareholder since 8 August 2010. Astrotech is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CALT. He was re-designated as Executive Director
and appointed as CEO on 6 March 2012. He has also been a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Xu Jun, aged 47, graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Aeronautical
Industry Management with a Bachelor degree with major in Finance and
Accounting and BeiHang University with a Master degree in Business
Administration. He was qualified as a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in June 1996. Since November 2005, he had
successively been the Chief Accountant with subsidiaries of the Company's
controlling shareholder, CALT, namely, Long March Aerospace Control
Engineering Corporation, CALT Institute 18, and Aerospace Research
Institute of Materials & Processing Technology. He was appointed as Financial
Controller and Executive Director of the Company on | November 2014. He

is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Shili, aged 42, graduated from Peking University with a Bachelor
degree in Law and obtained a Master degree in Finance from Renmin
University of China. Since he joined CALT in 1995, he has served as Auditor,
Deputy Director with the Second Division in Audit Office, Director of
Consolidated Finance Division, Deputy Chief, Chief of the Finance Department
and Chief Accountant. He was qualified as a Lawyer and as a Certified
Accountant in 1997 and a registered Tax Agent in 2007 in PRC. In parallel, he
has been a Director of Astrotech since 8 August 2010. He was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010.

Ms. Zhang Jianhua, aged 55, registered consultant, graduated from Nankai
University with an Executive Master degree in Business Administration. She
had been the Officer Assistant, Officer and General Manager with the China
Aerospace Engineering Consultation Centre (“CAECC") successively during
2003 to 2007; the Deputy General Manager with Beijing Control Technology
Co. Ltd. under, and the Chief Engineer with the Business Investment and
Industry Development Department of, CAST. She has been the Deputy Chief
of Business and Investment Development of CALT since 2010, possessing rich
experience in engineering consuftancy, market exploitation, project operation
and business management. Both CAECC and CAST are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CASC. She was appointed as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 30 March 2012 and retired therefrom by rotation under the
Avrticles of Association of the Company on 5 June 2015 due to her assuming

Chairman Assistant with the Company from | June 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Dechen, aged 76, graduated with a bachelor degree from
Harbin Institute of Military Technology (formerly Chinese People’s Liberation
Army Military Engineering Institute), was a committee member of the 0th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Congress. He served as the Assistant
Director, Director of Teaching and Research Office, Deputy Dean, Vice
President, Deputy Secretary to the Party Committee of Nanjing Eastern
China Engineering College between 1966 and 1985. He acted as Secretary
of Education of the Ministry of China Weapon Industry Ministry's National
Mechanical Committee in 1985. He served as Deputy General Manager of
China North Industries Group in 1988 to 1990 and of China Weapon Industry
Corp. in 1990 to 1996. He served as General Manager and Secretary to the
Party Secretary of China South Industries Group Corp. from July 1999. From
December 2003 onwards, he acted as the Senior Consultant thereof. From
July 2004 to December 2009, he was an Independent Director of Aisino,
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. With rich experience in
strategic management and corporate restructuring, Mr. Wang is the senior
expert in Chinese advanced equipment manufacturing industry and automotive
industry. Also, Mr. Wang is an active advocate and experienced expert in
China environmental protection and clean energy field. He was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 23 January 2008,
reappointed on 23 January 201 | and 23 January 2014 for a tenure of 3 years
each. He resigned therefrom on 10 November 2015.
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Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 61, is a fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the CPA Australia and an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has over 20 years
of experience in corporate finance and is well experienced in both the equity
and debt markets. She held various senior positions in interational and local
banks and financial institutions and is currently a controlling shareholder and
the Managing Director of each of Asia Investment Management Ltd. (“AIM")
and Asia Investment Research Ltd. (“AIR"), both companies are licensed
corporations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"). Ms
Kan was and is a licensed investment adviser under the SFO and a registered
officer of Lotus Asset Management Ltd. through 31 March 2015 and of AIM
and AIR. Ms. Kan is and was also an Independent Non-executive Director of
each of Regal Hotels International Holdings Ltd,, Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Ltd., Sunway International Holdings Ltd. (“Sunway"), Shimao Property
Holdings Ltd. and Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company
Ltd, all of which are companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
AVIC International Investments Ltd, a company listed on Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Ltd. She retired from the office of Sunway on 28 February
2013. She was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January 2011 and 23

January 2014 for a tenure of 3 years each.
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Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 51, obtained his Bachelor's degree in Microbiology
and Biochemistry and Master's degree in Intellectual Property from University
of London. He was qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and
Hong Kong in 1994. He has been the Head of Corporate Finance/Capital
Market, Asia of the Hong Kong Office of an international law firm since July
2013. Prior to that, he had been a partner of Sidley Austin Brown & Wood,
Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong, Hogan & Hartson,
Hong Kong and O'Melveny & Myers, Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Mainland Headwear Holdings Ltd, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, on | September 2014. He
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January 201 | and 23 January 2014

for a tenure of 3 years each.

Mr. Li Dapeng, aged 59, graduated from University of Science and
Technology Beijing (formerly Beijing Steel Institute) with a Bachelor degree
in Computing and a Master degree in Engineering and the University of
Cincinnati with a PhD degree in Computer Engineering. Possessing extensive
experience relating to system development in capital market, Mr. Li had been
the Chief Architect with New York Mercantile Exchange during the years 200
to 2003; Chief Information Officer; and Chairman of Technology Management
Committee with Shanghai Futures Exchange during the years from 2003 to
2010; CEO and founder of Shanghai Global Financial Technology during the
years 2010 to 2012; Senior Adviser to CEO with the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Ltd. during the period from March 2013 to May 2015. He has
been the Chief Information Officer of Haier Financial Group, offering the
perspective on technology and risk management to the Group since June
2015. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the

Company on 10 November 2015 for a tenure of 3 years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zhang Jianhua served as the Chairman Assistant of the Company from
| June 2015. Her biographical details are set out herein under Non-executive

Directors.

Mr. Li You, aged 51, senior engineer, graduated from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology with a bachelor degree in Electronic Material and
Component Specialized Technology. He has also studied courses in economics,
banking, finance and business management of engineering management
research class in Beijing Institute of Technology. Since 1986, he successively
served in Beijing Telemetering Technical Research Institute, CALT's Political
Division, Administrative Office, Civilian Use Development Department as
Deputy Director, Comprehensive Management Director in which he was
engaged in special case development, technical division management, public
relation management, and civil assets integrative management work. In 2003,
he served as Deputy Chief of Investment Management Department in
CALT, responsible for CALT's civil assets planning management, corporate
management, capital restructuring, and management appraisal work. Having
possessed extensive experience in aerospace civil industry management,
he was appointed as a Vice President (formerly known as Deputy General
Manager) of the Company on 6 March 2007. He was appointed as Executive
Vice President of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chen Wei Nong, aged 59, senior engineer, graduated from Zhejiang
University with a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Manufacturing Processes and
Equipment. Since 1980, he successively served in Beijing Jian Hua Electronic
Instrument Factory of CALT as workshop craftsman, designer, Deputy
Director of Technology Division, Deputy Chief of Testing and Control Studio
and Deputy Factory Manager of the Factory. He served as Deputy Chief
Engineer of Yuan Wang Group from 1999 to 2003. From 2003 to 2010, he
successively served as General Manager Project Assistant, and Deputy General
Manager of Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd. He has served as Chief Engineer
of the Company since June 2008. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of

subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Hu Wei Lin, aged 51, researcher, graduated from the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor
degree and from China Academy of Space Technology with a Master degree
in Spacecraft Design. Since 1991, he successively served in Beijing LM Hi-Tech
Development Corporation as Designer, Deputy Chief Engineer, Chief Engineer
and Deputy General Manager. In 2007, he was appointed as Deputy General
Manager cum Director of Wind Power Research and Development Centre of
Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He has been appointed as General Manager
Project Assistant and the Director of Research on 900KW wind turbine of
the Company since February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Wei Min, aged 49, researcher, graduated from Department of
Precision Instruments and Mechanology, Tsinghua University with a Bachelor's
degree. He successively served as Designer, and Deputy Manager in Civilian
Product Design House, as Deputy Factory Manager of Packaging Machinery
Factory, as Chief Engineer in Civilian Product Group of Capital Aerospace
Machinery Company from July 1988 to October 2001. During November
2001 to July 2003, he studied at the Research Centre for Intelligent Machines,
McGill University in Canada in obtaining a Master's degree of engineering.
From July 2003, he successively served as Deputy General Manager, and the
Manager of Wind Power Research and Development Department of Beijing
Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He served as General Manager Project Assistant
of the Company from February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Au-Yeung Keung, Steve. Mr. Au-Yeung graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a Master of Science degree in Electronic
Commerce and Internet Computing, the City University of Hong Kong with a
LLM degree in Chinese and Comparative Law and the University of London
with a LLB degree with honours. He is a fellow member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. He began his career in being an auditing
professional with an intemational accounting firm and had rich and extensive
experience in accounting, auditing, financial management and company
secretarial practice in Hong Kong and PRC prior to joining the Company.
Mr. Au-Yeung was appointed as the Company Secretary and authorized

representative of the Company on | June 2006.
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This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices and
explains the application of the principles in the Corporate Governance Code
("the CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules™) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2015 and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to the

date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices are
fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company
and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and

enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015
save the following.

All of the Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, except that Independent Non-executive Directors are of a fixed
term of 3 years, but are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election
at the Company's Annual General Meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the
retirement provisions under the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken in this regard to
ensure that the Group's corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015 and up to the date of this report comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Jun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Shili
Ms. Zhang Jianhua
(through 5 June 2015; and retired thereon)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dechen
(through 10 November 2015; and resigned thereon)
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng
(from 10 November 2015; and appointed thereon)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 30 and 37 of
this Annual Report. The Directors are unrelated to each other in every aspect

including financial, business or family.

The Board meets regularly and Board Meetings are held at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of
the year are scheduled in advance and at least 14 days' notice is given to
Directors so as to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board Meetings. The
Directors may attend a meeting in person or may participate by means of a
conference telephone or similar communication equipment by means of which

all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
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Seven Board Meetings and an AGM were held during the year ended 3|
December 2015. The attendance record of each Director at the said meetings

during the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:-

HE/BTERRY
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held

Executive Directors

EEXges
Board

RRAFAE

Annual

Meetings General Meeting

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 717 /1
Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman) 317 I/
Mr. Li Guang 717 1/l
Mr. Xu Jun 717 [/1
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fang Shili 207 o/l
Ms. Zhang Jianhua

(through 5 June 2015 and retired thereon) 212 I/
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Dechen

(through 10 November 2015) 4/6 o/l
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 717 I/
Mr. Gordon Ng 6/7 1/
Mr. Li Dapeng (from 10 November 2015) 1/ 0/0

The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be retained
for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and long-term
objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business plans and financial
statements, interim and final results announcements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, investments, capital projects and commitments, annual
internal control assessment, funding and risk management policies as well as

connected transactions.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper risk management and

intemal controls systems.



SRR

EECATRITOEEAEE mESeCR
0NFIANBERMESG 2 LEBTRARE
BE - ESeHIBETZIECEEARED

T

@ HIEIRRAAATRBCEE R ZBER
RER

b) BRAREREEFREMREBRABZEI
PREEEER

 BIAREEARAABET
MEZBERER

ERNEE

@ HEF RAREREAREERESEZ
TRTARERFMIE) &

() BHAARRRAIEHEETTHRELEER
HESAELHEBEER

EERRER

EEREAH(RR D ZBEIHLATRA
THIT URGRESREEEFGCATER
HEBARREBZAEARESD 20155
BHEAERARAEER  MERELEAK
NGIEE

BIAERITES

ARAREXE-2BVIRTES - B2
WISENANBEFERARERRIE - &
FEE-—HFELMARAE3I0() 3100 &
mmﬁZﬁi'éﬁiﬁﬁaz:%f*#

HTEB(TOREBRABZ=H 2~ )H
A EARREZSRAR - € BHHE
LA -

AAREREBLRBUFNTESARBLN

ZFEEHRE  ARRETRAEI3GMAE
B IR  RABRBUIFNITES
VBB -

EEERRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties and
the Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance Functions of the Board was
adopted on 30 March 2012. The main corporate governance duties which are

being performed by the Board are as follows:-

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") are
separate and are performed by different individuals so as to ensure a clear
division between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
CEO's responsibility to manage the Company's business. In 2015, Mr. Han
Shuwang was the Chairman, and Mr. Li Guang was the CEQ, of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

There are currently three Independent Non-executive Directors. During the
year ended 3| December 2015 and up to the date of this report, the Board at
all times met the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules in appointment of a sufficient number of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, at least one third of the Board, one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial management

expertise.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors is independent in accordance
with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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IRHBEEERREHNDELE development programme with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a director of a listed company in 2015 is recorded in the table
below.

BEE
REEHER SREREH
Reading Attending
regulatory development
updates programmes
Executive Directors
Mr. Han Shuwang v v
Mr. Wang Xiaodong v/ 4
Mr. Li Guang v v
Mr. Xu Jun v 4
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fang Shili v/ 4
Ms. Zhang Jianhua (through 5 June 2015) v/ v/
Independent Non-executive
Directors
Mr. Wang Dechen
(through 10 November 2015) v/ v/
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice v v/
Mr. Gordon Ng v/ 4
Mr. Li Dapeng
(from 10 November 2015) v/ 4
® 2015 E %
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised five members through 5 June 2015
and four members from 5 June 2015 and was chaired by Mr. Wang Dechen
(through 10 November 2015) and by Mr. Gordon Ng (from 10 November
2015), Independent Non-executive Directors, with Mr. Li Guang, an Executive
Director and CEO, Ms. Alice Kan, Mr. Gordon Ng (appointed as Chairman
on 10 November 2015) and Mr. Li Dapeng (from 10 November 2015),
Independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhang Jianhua (through 5 June

2015), a Non-executive Director as members.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee updated on 30
March 2012 are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The main

duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:-

() to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for

all Directors” and senior management's remuneration;

(i) to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual

Executive Directors and senior management;

(iv)  to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors;

(v)  to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment; and

(Vi)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal

or removal of Directors for misconduct.
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One Remuneration Committee Meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2015. The attendance record of each member at the
Remuneration Committee Meeting during the year ended 31 December 2015

is set out below:-

HERY, ARLERERY
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Executive Director
Mr. Li Guang [/

Non-executive Director
Ms. Zhang Jianhua (through 5 June 2015) [/

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Dechen (Chairman)

(through 10 November 2015) [/
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng (Chairman from

10 November 2015) [/1
Mr. Li Dapeng (from |0 November 2015) 0/0

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the year ended
31 December 2015 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the

Remuneration Committee and is summarised below:-

(i) reviewed the existing remuneration policy (structure and procedure) for

all Directors” and senior management's remuneration;

(i) recommended the amount of remuneration to be paid to each
Executive Director and senior management member for the year ended
31 December 2014 with reference to corporate goals and objectives
and reviewed the amount of Director’s fees to be paid to each Non-

executive Director for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The amount of remuneration paid to each Director for the year ended 3|

December 2015 is set out in Note || to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2012 and
comprised five members. It is chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang, the Chairman, with
Mr. Xu Jun, Mr. Wang Dechen (through 10 November 2015), Ms. Alice Kan,
Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng (from 10 November 2015) as members.

The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the Nomination

Committee on 30 March 2012 which are aligned with the Code Provisions of

the CG Code. The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:-

()

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEQO.

Three Nomination Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 3|

December 2015. The attendance record of each member at the meeting is

set out below:-

HE/BTEERE
Nomination Number of Meetings
Committee Members Attended/Held
Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 2/3
Mr. Wang Dechen (through 10 November 2015) 2/3
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 3/3
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/3
Mr. Xu Jun 3/3
Mr. Li Dapeng (from 10 November 2015) 0/0
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee for the year ended
31 December 2015 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the

Nomination Committee and is summarised below:

(i) reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's

corporate strategy;

(i) assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and

(i) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2015
AGM and considered succession planning for Directors, in particular, the
Chairman and the CEO.

Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of shareholders subsequent to his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
shareholders of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such

meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

During the year, the Nomination Committee nominated Mr. Li Dapeng to be
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director. The said nomination
was approved by the Board at the Board Meeting held on 9 November 2015.
In accordance with Article 99 of the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Li
will retire at the 2016 AGM. He will be re-elected therein.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members and is chaired by Ms. Alice
Kan, with Mr. Wang Dechen (through 10 November 2015), Mr. Gordon Ng,
Mr. Fang Shili and Mr. Li Dapeng (from 10 November 2015) as members.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee updated on 30 March 2012
and 20 March 2015 are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code.
The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:-

() to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to answer any

questions of resignation or dismissal of the auditor;

(i) to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant
financial reporting judgments contained therein before submission to
the Board;

(i) to review the contents of the representation letter to the external

auditor prior to submission to the Board;

(iv)  to review the Company's financial controls, risk management and

internal control systems;

(v)  to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management's

response to these findings;

(Vi)  to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced, has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and monitor its

effectiveness; and

(vil)  to review the Group's financial accounting policies and practices.
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Two Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 3|
December 2015. The attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee Meetings is set out below:

HERE BRERERH
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Non-executive Director

Mr. Fang Shili 112
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 22
Mr. Wang Dechen (through 10 November 2015) 112
Mr. Gordon Ng 22
Mr. Li Dapeng (from 10 November 2015) 0/0

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2015 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Audit

Committee and is mainly summarised below:-

() reviewed and discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT"),
the external auditor of the Company, before submission to the Board
the Company's consolidated financial statements in the annual report,
interim report and significant financial reporting judgments contained

therein for monitoring the integrity of the reports;

(i) reviewed the reports from the Head of Internal Audit on assessment
of the effectiveness of risk management and the internal control system
of the Group covering material controls for financial, operational,

compliance and risk management;

(i) reviewed the continuing connected transactions.
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Development and Investment Committee

The Development and Investment Committee comprises five members and
is chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang with Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Li Guang, Mr.
Wang Dechen (through 10 November 2015), Mr. Xu Jun and Mr. Li Dapeng

(from 10 November 2015) as members.

The duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group's development and investment
plan and strategies. No Development and Investment Committee meeting
was convened during the year ended 3| December 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remunerations of the senior management members as set out on pages

(W36 BREIVEME ) 2HMENTHEHE 36 to 37 for the year ended 31 December 2015 were within the following
A bands:
A
Number of
individuals
Z % 1,000,000/87T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000
1,000,000 7T £ 1,500,000 78 7T HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000
7
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BTN 2 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

EHNAEE T EREAEASEZTEALRE DTT was appointed as the external auditor of the Group by the shareholders
B2 BT o B E 2015 12831 B at the last AGM of the Group. The remuneration to DTT recognised for the

EHREH 2 MEEFHNWT : year ended 3| December 2015 was set out as follows:
BRMMRHREZEA Fees relating to services rendered
FET
HK$000
FiT AR Audit services 3,050
H AR B AR TS Interim review services 400
3,450
EEZHMBHRRER DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBLITIES FOR

FINANCIAL REPORTING

ARREFRARSEEERTHLEMEHBE  The Company's Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
FEGHEEMAFRBAREREAMER consolidated accounts for each half and full financial year which give a true and
RSB AEE D EBRRZHEEREE - EF fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
HRBGEAMBRRAFEZEEHIINE66  “the Group”). The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing consolidated
BRFTEZBIYZEENHREAN  L£EHEE  financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages
% EERRAEEEBRAEIRURA] 66 and 67. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
BREKREELLEMLN  FILEERMBLEF  the Group has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for

BREFAGRGEEABRE - the foreseeable future and thus it is appropriate to adopt the going concern

basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

BUZHE  RREEHNESCARFECTE  The reporting responsibilities of the Independent Auditor are set out in the
ZBIUGHERER o Independent Auditor's Report on pages 66 and 67.

@ TEMXBRER(EE) BRLT ©® 2015 FRK
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that material misstatements or losses can be

avoided, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in operational systems.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems. The Group has an
Internal Audit Team reporting directly to the Audit Committee. The Intermal
Audit Team performs regular independent reviews of all material controls,
including risk management, financial, operational and compliance controls of
the Group and evaluates their adequacy and effectiveness on a continuing
basis. The annual audit plan is discussed and agreed every year with the
Audit Committee. A report of audit findings is submitted to the members of
the Audit Committee and discussed at the Audit Committee Meetings. The
audit reports are then followed up by the Internal Audit Team to ensure
recommended actions have been taken on the findings previously identified
such that they are properly resolved. Internal audits are designed to provide
the Board with reasonable assurance that sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems of the Group are implemented for protecting the

Group's assets and identifying business risks.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system covering risk management and all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance for the year under review and
in view of the above, it opined that the Group's risk management and internal
control systems are effective, adequate and in compliance with the Code

Provisions on risk management and internal control of the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code for dealing
in securities of the Group by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry,
all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the Group's
shareholders with detailed information on the Group so that they can exercise

their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.

These include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend AGM to ensure a high level
of accountability and to be kept informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of all the Board Committees, or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are available
to answer any questions from the shareholders. A separate resolution is
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the
AGM, including the re-election of Directors. An AGM circular was distributed
to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM (at least
10 clear business days in the case of all other general meetings), setting out
details of each proposing resolution, poll voting procedures and other relevant

information.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all general meetings of the Company are to be
conducted by poll: the Chairman will at the commencement of the meeting
ensure that an explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
is provided and then answer any questions from shareholders regarding
voting by way of a poll. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange on the business day of the shareholders’

meeting thereafter.
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As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website at http://www.energine.hk where the Group's announcements,
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company's Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition ("the
Written Requisition™), specifying the proposed resolution (“the Proposed
Resolution™) accompanied by a statement in respect of the matter referred to
in the Proposed Resolution, to the Company Secretary of the Company at its
Head Office, to request the Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the
agenda for the annual general meeting or to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified

in such Written Requisition.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and concerns by
post or by fax to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of
the Company at its Head Office as follows:

Company Secretary

China Energine International (Holdings) Ltd.
Suite 4701, 47th Floor,

Central Plaza,

|8 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note 43

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income on page 68 to 69.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: final dividend of HKO.7 cent per ordinary

share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are

set out on pages 6 to 29.

CHARITABLE DONATION

The Group donated a sum of HK$147,000 (2014: HK$156,000) in respect of
a teaching support in Xiahe County, Gansu during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in

note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2015, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2015 were HK$1,463,537,000 (2014: HK$1,494,545,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Jun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Shili
Ms. Zhang Jianhua (through 5 June 2015, and retired thereon)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dechen (through 10 November 2015,
and resigned thereon)
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng (from 10 November 2015; and appointed thereon)

The tenures of offices of the Non-executive Director are from the date they
were last elected to the date of their retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association; those of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are of a fixed term of 3 years but subject to retirement

and re-election under the Company’s Articles of Association.

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice and Mr. Gordon Ng, by rotation, and Mr. Li Dapeng,
by maturity, shall retire at the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with the respective Article |16 and 99 of the Company's

Avrticles of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ RESIGNATION AND RETIREMENT

Ms. Zhang Jianhua retired from Non-executive Director by rotation under
the Articles of Association of the Company on the AGM of 5 June 2015 due
to her assuming Chairman Assistant with the Company from | June 2015. At
the same time, she retired from Remuneration Committee’'s member of the

Company.

Mr. Wang Dechen has resigned as Independent Non-executive Director,
Remuneration Committee’s Chairman, Audit Committee's member,
Nomination Committee’s member as well as Development and Investment
Committee’s member of the Company with effect from 10 November 2015.
Mr. Wang, a retired senior management member of state-owned company,
resigned from the offices in following the provisions relating to new state

policy thereon.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow
subsidiaries was party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

No permitted indemnity provisions entered into by the Company or
otherwise for the benefit of the Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange") pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their associates
(as defined in the “Listing Rules”) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition

of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/

entities who had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of

the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group and the

amount of each of such persons’ interest in such securities or in any options in

respect of such capital were as follows:

47)
Capacity
BASEB RRIER (At 2)

Interest of a controlled

corporation (Note 2)

AR ARIER (A 3)
Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 3)

EnEAA
Beneficial owner

Note:

BH#E

Number

REBDL
Percentage

of shares of shareholding

(Bt 1)

(Note 1)
2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%

I The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

2. CASC is deemed to be interested in 2,649,244,000 shares as it holds 100% of

the equity of CALT.

3. Astrotech is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Accordingly, CALT is deemed
to be interested in all the shares held by Astrotech.
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 31 December 2015,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member

of the Group or in any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions as stated in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements, which are required to be disclosed in

accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules:

(I) Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Leasing of Property

[t was also announced on 31 December 2013 that Inner
Mongolia Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd. ("IM New
Energy"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a property leasing agreement with IM Composite Material
whereby IM New Energy was to lease its premises of No. |
Aerospace Road, Xing Wang Jiao Industrial Park, Xinghe County,
Inner Mongolia to Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Composite
Material Co. Ltd. (“IM Composite Material") as industrial plant,
office, warehouse and associated facilities for manufacture of
turbine blades and other composite materials for a 2-year term
from | January 2014 to 3| December 2015 at an annual rental
and management fee of RMB5, 181,413 in total.
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The property leasing agreement was entered into on normal
commercial terms with the rental being at market prices or prices
no less favourable to IM New Energy than those available from
independent third parties. By this agreement, IM Composite
Material was enabled to occupy and use the leased premises for
its principal activities of manufacture of wind turbine blades of

composite materials to its customers.

Since one of the shareholders of IM Composite Material as to
41.03% shareholding is Aerospace Research Institute of Materials
& Processing Technology (“Aerospace Material”), which is a
subsidiary of CALT, the Company's major controlling shareholder,
IM Composite Material is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being a non wholly-owned subsidiary with the said
more than 10% shareholding. The leasing of property to them
constituted continuing connected transactions under Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules. The total lease amount received by IM
New Energy pursuant thereto for the year 2014 amounted to
RMB5,181,413 in total which was equal to the agreed annual
amount of RMB5,181,413.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected

Transaction

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to
conduct a review of the above transaction (A) ("Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transaction”) for the year ended 31
December 2015. The auditor has reported their factual findings
to the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transaction
for the year ended 3| December 2015 and confirmed that the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transaction has been entered

into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.

In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to the
Board of Directors in writing that the Disclosed Continuing

Connected Transaction for the year ended 31 December 2015:

(

) nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transaction has

not been approved by the Company's board of directors.

(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that the transaction was not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of

the Company.

(3)  nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the transaction was not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreement

governing such transactions.
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(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transaction set out above, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transaction has
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the previous announcement dated 3| December
2013 made by the Company in respect of the Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transaction.

(I1) Connected Transactions

(A) Acquisition of Shanghai Hanli

[t was announced on |0 July 2015 that Beijing Energine, a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an Equity Transfer
Agreement with Long March Launch Vehicle Industry Co., Ltd.
(" Long March Launch Vehicle”) on 10 July 2015 in relation to
purchase of 100% equity in Shanghai Hanli Machine Tool Co,, Ltd.
("Shanghai Hanli") at the purchase price of RMB80,884,000 as
mentioned in the business review. The acquisition was completed
in December 2015.

Since Long March Launch Vehicle is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company's major controlling shareholder of CALT, Long
March Launch Vehicle is a connected person of the Company.
The purchase of 100% equity in Shanghai Hanli under the Equity
Transfer Agreement constitutes a connected transaction under
chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.
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There were loans advances from CALT through CASC's
subsidiary, Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co.
Ltd. ("ASTF") or from ASTF (with guarantee from CALT) to
Beijing Energine as set out in note 39(i) (a) (1) and (2) to the
consolidated financial statements. Since CALT and CASC are
intermediate major shareholder and ultimate major shareholder,
of the Company respectively and ATSF is a CASC's subsidiary,
the loans were connected transactions yet they were exempted
from requirements of disclosure, reporting and shareholders’
approval by virtue of interests relating to the loans being of
commercial terms or better to Beijing Energine and no security
made for the loans under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

The above connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction are confirmed that they have complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter [4A of the

Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 79% of the
Group's turnover and turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer

accounted for approximately 26% of the Group's turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 51% of the
Group's purchases and purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier

accounted for approximately 13% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued

share capital had any interests in the above five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR

A resolution would be submitted to the annual general meeting to reappoint

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, if eligible, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Shuwang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group") set out on pages 68 to 195,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2015, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the applicable disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
23 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#Z20/5F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

P & 2015 2014
NOTES FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$000
EEHE Turnover 5 2,616,696 2,699,950
HEKA Cost of sales (2,371,786) (2436,675)
EH Gross profit 244,910 263,275
HAb A Other income 7 29,320 43,658
Hip iz R E1E Other gains and losses 8 (2,836) 2751
HE R HRA Selling and distribution expenses (123,091) (114,583)
THRER Administrative expenses (139,132) (143,503)
PR Finance costs 9 (84,216) (93,136)
iy UNCE S Share of results of associates (7,086) (3,863)
ElhaEhEES Share of results of joint ventures 156,985 139,681
AR A Profit before taxation 10 74,854 94,280
BB Taxation 2 @,701) (1,296)
REZ A Profit for the year 72,153 92984
Hitp2ERX - Other comprehensive expense:
TEEHHEEBH2IBE  tem that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
—-MEENEHESE — exchange differences arising
ZEH =R on translation to
presentation currency (133,371) (6,408)
FREEFAS)BRALE Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year (61,218) 86,576

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK



FeBmkEMEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

P & 2015 2014
NOTES FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$000
FRUATALE®S Profit (loss) for the year
A (E#E) attributable to:
ZNSIE ZSUN Owners of the Company 75,469 90,894
JEFE 1 s Non-controlling interests (3,316) 2,090
72,153 92,984
ATALREEZEFER) Total comprehensive (expense)
LN income attributable to:
AREHEAA Owners of the Company (53,677) 84,733
JFHR IR Non-controlling interests (7,541) 1,843
(61,218) 86,576
BRAEF -ER Earnings per share - Basic 14 HKI.73 cents Bfll  HK229 cents &4l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R20I5F 12831 H
At 31 December 2015

i 2015 2014
NOTES FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
ERBEE Non-current assets
REM*E Investment properties 15 140,610 148,694
mE - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 16 329,082 372,854
WEYE - BB RREH Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

Xfz%E plant and equipment — 10810
Bk Goodwill |7 2,004 2,004
BVEE Intangible assets 18 244,382 52,798
EETIEE E Deferred tax assets 30 1,759 1937
NN - T Interests in associates 19 407,587 455,600
N AoE P X Interests in joint ventures 20 1,189,068 1,279,855
Bl —HEErER Amount due from a joint venture 25 100,244 108,813
ARHERE Available-for-sale investment 21 2,745 | 521

2,417,481 2,434,886

REEE Current assets

3 Inventories 22 402,650 485,730
2 5 R H A FEMR Trade and other receivables 23 1,668,582 1,491,795
JRE i Bt 5 X B 3R Amounts due from associates 24 880,737 592,162
Bl —FEaerER Amount due from a joint venture 25 28,358 30,347
BEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 696 7,779
RITHEHRRRE Bank balances and cash 26 300,298 862,568

3,281,321 347038

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

® 2015 F#H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

K2015F 12431 H
At 3/ December 2015
i 2015 2014
NOTES FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
I R=Ri Current liabilities

5 R EMENK Trade and other payables 27 1,422,312 1,461,740
FEIBE & A R Amounts due to associates 24 241,451 248,841
EEEhER Amounts due to joint ventures 25 88 6,303
I8 T 463 B Govemment grants 31 1,104 1,173
EANEZE] Taxation payable 2,483 2,537
RIERE Warranty provision 28 106,258 74,032
=5 Borrowings 29 1,130,714 985916
BAEHEAIE Obligation under a finance lease 32 124 119
2,904,534 2780,66|
RBEEFE Net current assets 376,787 689,720
EELAERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 2,794,268 3,124,606

FnBeE Non-current liabilities
3 Borrowings 29 494,162 728,891
EERIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 30 19,731 20831
BEHEAE Obligation under a finance lease 32 152 276
I8 AT 465 B Government grants 31 31,295 33,879
545,340 783877
2,248,928 2,340,729
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R20I5F 12831 H
At 31 December 2015

B s 2015 2014
NOTES FAT FET
HK$’000 HK$000
BEXKf#E Capital and reserves

AR Share capital 33 436,900 436,900
i1 Reserves 1,746,618 1,830,878

ARAEE ARG ERE Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2,183,518 2,267,778
FEPE M R A Non-controlling interests 65,410 72951
A Total equity 2,248,928 2,340,729

FINF68E 195 B Al Kgs  IKES The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 195 were approved
2R 2016F3 A 23 BHEERIREETIEE - WM and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2016 and are

TEEAREEF signed on its behalf by:
B =%
Han Shuwang Li Guang
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

RAEREARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
UEED FEdl
1] B
BE GRBE  RBEE  Popety  ERBE  HBEE  ZiEE Non-
Share Special Share  revaluation  Exchange Other  Accumulated 8 controlling a8
capitl - reseve  premium  reserve  reseve  reserves losses Total  interests Total
i T fE T TRt fET TR fET TET
HS0Y - HEW S HSOY MO AW AW MW SO AW
/% / U///LJ’
(Mot ) (NoteJ)
ROMEIAIB At | fanuary 2014 396300 175 248304l 139 g6t 045 (14930 18378 B3 19714
REZRA Proft forthe year = = = = = = 908%4 908%4 100 9%
HESFISRELE/BREE B dferenesaning
onfransaon to presentaton curency - - - - (6l61) - - (6l61) (M0 (6406)
RERRE(FRWAEE Totd compretensie expense] income for te jear = = = (616l) - 90804 U7 184 8576
B hste of shres 4000 - 4% = = = - % - %
TARBATSEAHESRS  Dvidend paid o non-contoling terets of a subsidry = = = = = = = = s )
g Transer - - - - (2916 (12916) = = =
ROMENA3IA At 31 December 2014 86900 17554 2730307 139 31850 B35 (141432) 2260778 sl 234079
RERRBE) Prot s for theyear - - - - - - T TS (A1 A
BESISHALZEIEE  Bchange dffeences aig
0n ransaton o presentation cumency - - - = (194 - = (194) (@) (1333n)
REERABR A BE Totalcomprehiensive (expense) income for the year - - - - (M4 - A9 (S8 (s (e218)
BEAREARA (D) Diidend recogned and paid (Note 1) - (08 - - - - - (058 - (3058
g Trendfer - - - - - 13017 (1300) - - -
RWISENA3NA At 3| December 2015 436,900 LRI N ORI 139 189387 88368 (135,874 2183518 05,410 2,48928
Bif=E - Note:
AEBZFEHRBEARAEETRATE The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
BARAMBEAMBLARIEETRATREZ nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal
EZERBEAEERN 1997488 11 BETE amount of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
AR T R L R R BB R 2 #BE 116,025,000 7 7T and the aggregate amount of HK$1 16,025,000 transferred from other reserves
MERRRENNBZE 20156 12431 HIEE pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation on || August 1997 and the amount of
BERE o dividend recognised and paid for the year ended 31 December 2015.
2. EREEERTEARAMB(HE])H 2. Included in other reserves are reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People's

B S~ R AT AR (i) B A F A 1R sk () 1 78
EEEGNREESURAERERERS
EERS  BUER AT 5 R T AR &
BES -

Republic of China (the “PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior
years losses or (i) expand production operations and reserve fund for future
enhancement of safety production environment and improvement of facilities
and is not available for distribution to shareholders.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BZE20/5F 12731 HIFFEE

For the year ended 3/ December 2015

REEy
BR B A A
TS BRELAE :
FEBA
FERX
iy lo/NE S
a2 hERE
B A EHH
WE - BERREINE

ERER BT

REMZEZ A FEZS NS

REFERE
BrE RRIARERE R

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expenses
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Government grants recognised
Gain from changes in fair value
of investment properties
Allowance for obsolete inventories

Unrealised profit in an associate

HEME  BELRRXBLER Loss on disposal of property,

RELER B Z Q7]
oz W

HE— RN E A A 2 s
RAEBE RN

REEE

plant and equipment
Gain on deemed disposal of interest
in an associate
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Impairment losses recognised

in respect of trade receivables

2015
FET
HK$’000

74,854

(6,873)
84,216
7,086

(156,985)
6,588

30,085
(630)

(621)
3,685
6,602

101

2014
T
HK$000

94,280

(9,843)
93,136
3863
(139.681)
4853

30315
(10974)

(887)
4776
7,580

53

(4932)
(20)

455

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

® 2015 F#H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZ20/5F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
HEECEBILE Operating cash flows before movements
EPHHERE in working capital 48,108 72974
FERA(EM) Decrease (increase) in inventories 75,413 (81,770)
5 N E A R AGRIE Increase in trade and other receivables (171,134) (166312)
FEURBsE & X R IE AN Increase in amounts due from associates (323,146) (534,928)
Y —Ha e XD Decrease in amount due from
a joint venture 366 1,490
B 5 REMERRORD)E M (Decrease) increase in trade and
other payables (152,148) 594,714
FEASBEE R R N OR ) Increase (decrease) in amounts
due to associates 7,137 (68,127)
JER & & BRI Increase in amounts due to joint ventures 26 46
1RAB B AL 1 Increase in warranty provision 38,037 38,216
ARgez8s Cash used in operations (4717,341) (143,697)
B AT 1S5 Income taxes paid (2,625) (1,569)
RETHIARETEH Net cash used in operating activities (479,966) (145,266)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EE2015F 12 A3 HIFFE

For the year ended 3/ December 2015

2015 2014
B aE FET FET
NOTES HK$’000 HK$000
REEE Investing activities
BE—RaEtERMZBRE Dividend received from a joint venture 173,708 173,387
BHEE N RRELZ R B Dividend received from associates 8,296 9,716
R EARITER Release of pledged bank deposits 7,083 1,533
RE NN Interest received 3,068 3810
HEME - BERFZHEHMEHR  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 699 2909
EREVEE Payment for intangible assets (48,956) (22,309)
W — FeIBf B 12 R 2 K Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary 40 (22,611) —
BEREME Purchase of investment properties (10,383) (4,757)
BEVE BERRE Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (7,530) (15,605)
AHEEREZRE Investment in available-
for-sale investment (1,313) —
HEREERFERMEN Proceed from disposal of interest
in joint venture —_ 273906
& — M B A BT R Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary — 20
W ER B #66 B) Receipt of government grant — 5,303
WY - BB Rk Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
EfRe plant and equipment — (7,700)
RETBELEZHSFH Net cash from investing activities 102,061 420213

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

® 2015 F#H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZ20/5F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
METH Financing activities
g AER New borrowings raised 999,414 669,007
EEER Repayment of borrowings (992,736) (903,281)
EFIE Interest paid (84,216) (93,136)
IR A Dividend paid (30,583) —
EERMEHERE Repayment of obligation under a
finance lease (19 (95)
BB AR EEHIMAR RS Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary — (2,257)
BT TSR Proceeds from issue of new shares —_ 300,000
BITHREEZFX Expenses incurred in connection
with issue of new shares - (10,744)
RMETHMAZREFR Net cash used in financing activities (108,240) (40,506)
RekReFEWORD) Net (decrease) increase in cash and
1% n3ER cash equivalents (486,145) 234,441
SNEEREE 2 FE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (76,125) (3,690)
FzHEeRREEED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 862,568 631817
FRZAERAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
LSBT EBRRE SR of the year, representing
bank balances and cash 300,298 862,568
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#Z20/5F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

— s

ARRRPAERSEIMALZ AR
DA BOREEBMARSAAERD
A((BRm]) EHm- AR ZEHE
£ B A 7 AAstrotech Group Limited
([Astrotech]) * Astrotech & R H B #
BARESTMRLZ AR HEARE
60.64% 2 1 # © Astrotech i Bl B & ¥
o B A BT R AT AR e B ([ KRR ) &
BHA - PEMARREEQRA(HH
2 ERERERASRARARALZ
RARERRA o PRE R ARG R T
FEARAMB([HE )KL o

ARTEMBERIEREBE L NS
RENERZ ATER—5 -
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BHRUNBT2Y - EERB/ARE
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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Astrotech
Group Limited (“Astrotech”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands which holds 60.64% interest in the Company. Astrotech
is wholly-owned by China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology
("CALT"), a state-owned enterprise. China Aerospace Science &
Technology Corporation (“CASC") is the ultimate holding company of
the Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC and
CALT are companies established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC™).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual

report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB") while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"). The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public company with the
shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most of its investors are

located.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its major subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

are set out in note 43.
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For the year ended 3| December 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)

for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 9 Defined benefit plans:

Employee contributions
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010 -2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2011 -2013 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2015 ® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers'
Amendments to HKFRS || Accounting for acquisitions of interests

in joint operations?

Amendments to HKAS | Disclosure initiative?

Amendments to HKAS |6 Clarification of acceptable methods
and HKAS 38 of depreciation and amortisation?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycle?

Amendments to HKAS |6 Agriculture: Bearer plants?
and HKAS 4|
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For the year ended 3| December 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS |0
and HKAS 28

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or

joint venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the consolidation exception?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI") measurement

category for certain simple debt instruments.

Annual Report 2015 ® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend

income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 3| December 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

J With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities' credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss
model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have

occurred before credit losses are recognised.

. The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been
removed. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity's

risk management activities have also been introduced.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS |5 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS || “Construction

Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS |5 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

Step |: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS |5 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive

disclosures are required by HKFRS 5.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the HKFRS 9 and HKFRS
I5 will be adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning | January 2018. The application of these
two standards may have significant impact on amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has

been completed.
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For the year ended 3| December 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “CO").

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual
accounts have been amended with reference to certain provisions
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding
preparation of accounts and directors’ reports to streamline with
HKFRSs and became effective for the Company for financial year ended
31 December 2015. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ended 3| December 2015 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements based on the new requirements.
Information previously required to be disclosed under the predecessor
CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended Listing

Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment properties which are

measured at fair value, as explained in accounting policies set out below.

Annual Report 2015 ® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

0 Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

J Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

0 has power over the investee;

J is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement

with the investee; and
0 has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes" and HKAS 19

“Employee benefits” respectively;

0 liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that

standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If; after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value

or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)

that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
is described below.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified

impairment loss. Investments in subsidiaries are set out in note 44.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have
been made to conform the associate's and the joint venture's
accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint

venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in
the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture on
the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)

when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;
0 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

0 it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

0 the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction

can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of electricity are recognised when electricity has

been delivered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts though the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders'
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease terms, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease

terms and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in

which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for

on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and

development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is

recognised if, and only if; all of the following have been demonstrated:

J the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it

will be available for use or sale;
0 the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible

asset; and

0 the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is

incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are

acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at

the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on

the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from

the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates and
joint ventures except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment

property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial

position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy above). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses

in the periods in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed.
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as

property, plant and equipment.



3.

e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEEAER @

EEREREAKERENARGHY
FIT B 75 10k 1 B S & iR Ao B By 5 RE AR R
fT#Eg) -

BRIGHBN AR ERER B R E 2
FARARRAXHERE  ARGUREER
MR- ABME  WBSHE 2B 2%
HRASEREE - BRI UEML R
REFRPEE  AESAPBRAR
AERASMBEEREESRTE YRR
REBUEEERBREEZIEAEFH
BEERR

EARBBEELARIIBARALTEE
B 3 488 R AR B P A Y BB 1 75 4% B
Z B HE B - TR AR B AT U B & E
AR BRI o

BABEFRF

ERUFERBMEE  BRAEEZR
RAEREH 8 R R 1 ATE R E 8l 2 5K
DRNEEBREREEEZAHAEER
RFIX o

BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives

of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

on initial recognition.
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial asset. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial asset are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due
from associates, bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss

on financial assets below).
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of asset revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss of financial assets

below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.



e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEEAER @

&MIR (8)
EREEZMEE)

REFREURNE - HELREER
e :

o BETAIRZUTFHRBAMBA
B

o BN MARBEANITEEEFNS
AL K

s EFRARFWRERHEXRMEE
7 o

RATEREEENME  WEZHENR
RETCERERENBIEESR
TRE—HFERE - BRFASHR
BREZEREEREEAKEBEWRNT
B HEeANBHTHEEHZTEMNR
FEAMEN - BRLMELEMRR
RABREDHEHERREEE -

RREHER AR SBEEMNS © B
EFESEREZERECREERRER
BERERANEMBZAEAARTRER
EHENEZHAE

RARARTIRNEREEM S - BIEE
BREFERAEEREEENEUSRE
ERBMHRRERAHENGTRAIRE
MEMBEME 2 Z8 - IWREBSRET
AR AR BT R o

BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables are
considered uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the

impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of asset revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the

impairment |oss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to associates, amounts due to joint ventures and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured
at their fair values are subsequently measured at the higher of:

() the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets”; and

(i) the amount intially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue

recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values

of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as
a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (Where the effect of the time value of the money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on
foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those

foreign currency borrowings.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial
disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or

loss.

Additionally, on disposal of group entities which has the same functional
currency as the Company, the exchange differences arising on translation

to presentation currency are transferred directly to accumulated losses.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

(a) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the management has reviewed the
Group's investment properties portfolios and concluded that
while the Group's investment property located in Shenzhen of
the PRC is depreciable, it is not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation arising
from this investment property, the management determined that
the presumption that this investment property measured using
the fair value model is recovered through sale is not rebutted.

For the Group's investment property located in Tieling of the
PRC, the management concluded that it is depreciable and
is being held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation arising
from this investment property, the management determined that
the presumption that this investment property measured using
the fair value model is recovered through sale is rebutted. The
potential deferred tax impact to the Group is recognised at the

end of the reporting period as shown in note 30.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Significant influence over Jilin Longyuan Wind Power
Co., Ltd.
Note 43 describes that Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co,, Ltd. (‘ilin
Longyuan”) is an associate of the Group although the Group
only owns 15.35% ownership interest in Jilin Longyuan. The
Group has significant influence over Jilin Longyuan by virtue of the
contractual right to appoint two out of the nine directors to the

board of directors of that company.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty and judgment at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period,
are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill and intangible assets have been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 3| December
2015, the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets are
HK$2,004,000 (2014: HK$2,004,000) and HK$244,382,000 (2014:
HK$52,798,000) respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertaintyContinued)

(b) Estimated impairment of trade receivables

()

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (ie. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2015, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
HK$690,745,000 (2014: HK$805,945,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$66,164,000 (2014: HK$67,062,000).

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates of market conditions
and assumptions made on the investment properties, including
comparable market rents and transactions with adjustments to

reflect different locations or conditions.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertaintyContinued)

(c) REME (&) (c) Investment properties(Continued)
ERBHEERSHRRE - K a=E In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
ENREEL M - W EREERA have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
2R RME TR SR RIEE assumptions used in the valuation is reflective of the current
MEBRHNEREBR ZEBE2 market conditions and current development of the investment
EREH B ERAEEIREE properties. Changes to these assumptions would result in changes
ZATEREES  WENGSE in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and
BRAREESEERAERE the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
MR20I5F 128318 BEWE reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 3|
Z BREE A 140,610,000 7C(2014 December 2015, the carrying amount of investment properties is
48,694,000 78T ° HK$140,610,000 (2014: HK$148,694,000).
] 5. TURNOVER
REBNAEENLSLEBEBAIHNOT : An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as follows:
2015 2014
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HERNZEREER Sales of wind energy related products 1,893,045 2,398,898
HERERBHEM Sales of energy storage and
related products 555,550 175,074
EmiHE Sales of goods 144,546 100,533
HERBRSELZEN Sales of electricity from operation
of wind farm 23,555 25445
2,616,696 2,699,950
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in

arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments for the year

under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows:

Wind Energy Related Products — Manufacture and sales of wind

energy related products

Operation of Wind Farm — Sales of electricity from operation
of wind farm
Rare-earth Permanent Magnet — Manufacture and distribution

Motor (“REPM™) Products of elevator motors

Telecommunication Business ~ — Development, manufacture and
distribution of communication
products, information
technology systems, broadband
systems, equipment

and accessories

Energy Storage and — Distributed energy renewal
Related Products solutions by combining
wind energy, solar energy

and energy storage

Information regarding these segments is presented below.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results by

operating and reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2015

ENEH
HEER REREBER
Wind B5EE Energy ERER
Energy Operation  FikHER Storage Tele-
Related of Wind REPM and Related communication &4
Products Farm Products Products Business  Consolidated

TET TET TET FET FET FET
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

LE] TURNOVER
HIMHE External sales 1,893,045 123,555 34,288 555,550 110,258 2,616,696
4 RESULT
PERE Segment result 57,119 (1,465) 1,988 34,648 (13,026) 19,324
AEARATER Unallocated corporate expenses (98,766)
AEAREMUA Unallocated other income 16,532
B Finance costs (84,216)
Eiingtss8 Share of results of a joint venture -

-AEREHA unallocated portion 161,359
KEMEZATEEHNE  Gain from changes in fair value of

investment properties 621

BB ATEH Profit before taxation 74,854
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6. DEEHE #

FEWMERES (B)
BE2014F 12831 BLLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

EWIEES
REER HREmER
Wind Bi5ER Energy EAEH
Energy Operation B KHER Storage Tele-
Related of Wind REPM andRelated  communication )
Products Fam Products Products Business Consolidated
AL AL AL FEL FEL FEL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
xR TURNOVER
e Extemal sales 2398898 25445 45904 75074 54629 2699950
4 RESULT
HERE Segment result 78,134 (743) 483 33989 1,222 [13085
AMEARAFER Unallocated corporate expenses (102,764)
AEAMEMHA Unallocated other income 19,702
BB Finance costs (93,136)
EhaERERE Share of results of a joint venture -
-AARHH unallocated portion 156,506
KENEZATEEZHRE  Gan from changes in fair value of
investment properties 867
Bitaian Proft before taxation 94280

BRESBHRA - REVE 2 AT EZSHK
o RN EEEEREESE UK
AEHOEEMBARARER  MEE
ABRARESF < - BIEHEAREE
7,086,0007% JT(20144F : 3,863,000/ JC )
KIS & BB 43740008 (2014
F 168250008 ) DECEREDE © It
T ERA R A EEVEME - [AA
EENTEEERNTE °

DREBIEE D BRIRAOBRBADER - T
E

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK

Segment results represent the profit before taxation earned by each
segment, excluding finance costs, gain from changes in fair value of
investment properties, share of results of a joint venture which cannot
be allocated, unallocated other income and corporate expenses such
as central administration costs and directors’ salaries. Share of loss of
associates of HK$7,086,000 (2014: HK$3,863,000) and share of loss of
joint ventures of HK$4,374,000 (2014: HK$16,825,000) are allocated
to reportable segments. This is the measure reported to the Group's
Executive Directors for the purpose of resources allocation and

assessment of segment performance.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable segment.

At 31 December 2015

ENEH
HEER REREBER
Wind B5EE Energy EREK
Energy Operation ~ FikHER Storage Tele-
Related of Wind REPM and Related communication &4
Products Farm Products Products Business  Consolidated

TET TET FET FET FET FET
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

8B ASSETS
NREE Segment assets 3,220,084 504,786 36,408 122,130 45,180 4,028,588
N Y 3 Interest in a joint venture
-REARHH - unallocated portion 1,152,692
AEANRLREE Unallocated corporate assets 517,522
TREESE Consolidated total assets 5,698,802
a2k LIABILITIES
NERE Segment liabitties 1,710,719 42,188 30,226 19,645 17,516 1,820,294
AARLAABE Unallocated corporate liabilties 1,629,580
DAEREE Consolidated total liabilties 3,449,874
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BE2015F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

6. DHEHBHE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
NESEREE (£) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
MR2014F 12831 H At 31 December 2014
BhEE
HBER HREmER
Wind Bi5ER Energy EAEH
Energy Operation B KHER Storage Tele-
Related of Wind REPM andRelated  communication A
Products Fam Products Products Business Consolidated
AL AL AL FEL FEL FEL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(] ASSETS
NREE Segment assets 2775860 567916 26436 102,850 52593 3,525,655
NI S Interest in 2 joint venture
-REARHH - unallocated portion 1,236,760
FEARNAEE Unallocated corporate assets 142852
GRBERE Consolidated total assets 5905267
B LIABILITIES
NERR Segment liabilties 1676027 59,156 18,554 60029 26875 1840641
AEARRARE Unallocated corporate liabiities 1723897
GREREE Consolidated total liabilties 3564538
AERSFEURADBERDEER For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

o  BAASRHRALDE Y ES - J all assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain
BEMEREMSBEE(TER interest in a joint venture which cannot be allocated, investment
BRTEBREIES ) IEEE properties and other financial assets that comprise of mainly bank
HHABEEEL DM o o5 B balances and cash. Goodwill is allocated to operating segments as
17ty AR PR EEL D5 described in note 17; and
&

o BAANETIETHEELEERE +  allliabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain
BEN TAEERBIRERL D borrowings which cannot be allocated and deferred tax liabilities.
5 -

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PEEHE @)

R20I15F 12831 H

HEABRAAAEERR  Amountsinduded nthe measure of segment
HAZER: proft or loss o segment aseets:

RENZ RRRRE Additons o property,plant and equipment

% BERRATE Deprecition of property,pint and equipment

REFLRE Alovence for obsolete mventortes

e - BERXEZER  Losson dipose of property,plnt and equpment

D ER Iterests i assodates

90 Inerests n joint ventures

Share of loss of associfes

Share of (loss) proft of oint ventures

6.

BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

At 31 December 2015

ENEE
BEER
Wind
Energy
Related
Products
7AL
HK$ 000

5018
15,005
100
103,382

(609)
(1545)

BEREEER
i Energy EEE S
Operation ~ BIXHER Storage Tele-
of Wind REPM  andRelated ~communication #EAR S
Farm Products Products Business  Unallocated  Consolidated
FAT FAT FEL FAT FAT AL

HKS 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 000

15 150 - o B 150
13,051 l - n Im 30088

- - - 3485 - 3485

- - - - 1]
304205 - - - - w15
376 - - N 3 Y N1
(1087) - - - - (1,086)
(289) - - - 161,359 156,985
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BE2015F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

6. HBE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
HipESE (&) Other segment information (Continued)
A2014F 12831 8 At 31 December 2014
Wi
HBER Fe REER
Wind BAEe Erergy e
Erergy Opein ~ FHXHER Storage Tele
Related of Wind REPM andRelated  communication FEAR e
Products Fam Products Products Business Unallocated Consolcated
7L 7ET T 7T &L AT 7L
00 HKS0W HS00 S0 HKS00 HE00 S0
HEABRAAABEER  Amountsinduded nthe measure of segment proft orloss
HAZER: orseqment asets
RENE BRRGAR Additons of property,plant and equipment 1303 1358 M = 1082 % 16095
% BERRATE Depreciaion of property,plnt and equipment 14749 1347 %I = 163 195 30315
BERERE Allowance for obsolete inventories 1,300 - 3476 - - - 4776
WENE  AERFEZEE  Lossondipost of propery, plant and equpment 3 = = - - - 5
MEEAT ER Interests in associetes gl 330609 - - - - 455,60
RaEREER Iterests n jintventures 1576 41519 = = = 1236760 1279855
BB EAT(BR) AT Share of loss) proft of assocites (8126) 4263 = = = = (3863)
FEAELE(BR)AT  Shareof (oss) proft of joint ventures (75%3) (9230 = = = 156506 13981

@ TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK
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=g up s U
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other regions of

the PRC.

() The Group's revenue from external customers are detailed

T : below:
2015 2014
FET T
HK$’000 HK$000
FR B L fth it [ Other regions of the PRC 2,599,273 2,683,436
BB Hong Kong 1,317 2,458
ESE United States of America 10,225 13,743
Hit Others 5,881 313
2,616,696 2,699,950

iy HEEMBMNESBNAEEIER
HEEEBNERFBENT ¢

(i) Information about the Group's non-current assets by geographical

location of the assets are detailed below:

FRBEEREE

Carrying amount

of non-current assets

2015 2014

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

HR B At [ Other regions of the PRC 2,415,364 2,432,722
B Hong Kong 2,117 2,164
2,417,481 2,434,886

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited



a M AR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ2015F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

6. DHEHBHE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
EHTEXZFRSH Information about major customers
RIEECEETEBALNERRISES Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over
0% BB B WEIT 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
BEPA 2 Customer A 2 667,312 453,965
BB 2 Customer B '2 449,918 NEAN/A?
EEC! Customer C ' 434,013 TEAN/A
®FD! Customer D FERNIA 540,198
ZFE! Customer E ' TERNIA® 467,725
A OB EIREES S : Revenue from Wind Energy Related Products
2 REERS AT 2 Revenue from the Group's associates
3 FE B U 25 1 7 2 (B U 25 48 58 ) b 51 3 3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
EFEB 10% revenue of the Group
7. HkA 7. OTHER INCOME
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
H AT BB Other income mainly comprises:
I8 468 B (B &) Government grants (Note) 4,054 13,009
REMERSBA Rental income from investment properties,
(BHmkr/ERX) net of negligible outgoings 8,946 9,840
FEHA Interest income
—RITHE R — bank balances 3,068 3,810
— T -HaErERIBR — advance to a joint venture 3,805 6,033
BifsE © @ 630,000 7T(20144F : 643,000 Note: An amount of HK$630,000 (2014: HK$643,000) represents subsidies
B iEREBN, RERENEE granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities for the
W - B RREBZFEMER T A% purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Bz # B (HIRE31) - & 1,383,000 (Note 31). An amount of HK$1,383,000 (2014: HK$10,555,000)
HIT(20144F ¢ 1055500078 7T ) 45 H represents subsidies granted to the Group by the PRC government/
BT, AR EREB MR T AS authorities for telecommunication business. The remaining amount of
Z BB 0 8T & %2,041,00055 T HK$2,041,000 (2014: HK$1,811,000) represents subsidies received from
(20144 : 1,811,000% 7T )15 E H the PRC tax authorities on Value Added Tax refund.

RGBS 2B ETRM -

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K
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BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

Hibl s R iEsiE 8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
REMERNTELB W= Gain from changes in fair value of
investment properties 621 887
ERRELBREE Net exchange loss recognised (3,356) (2,580)
HENE  BELRXHFER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (1or) (53)
RAEH SRS R AR 2 e Gain on deemed disposal of interest
in an associate - 4932
N B 2 s Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - 20
REWE SRR RERE Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables —_ (455)
(2,836) 2751
AR A 9. FINANCE COSTS
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
g Interest on:
—HRITREME T — bank and other loans 84,201 93,120
—RMEHE — finance lease 15 16
84,216 93,136
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ2015F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

10. BRHiR]iEEF

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
BREADE N 2 MR T 5B A Profit before taxation has been arived
at after charging;
EEHE Directors emoluments 6,722 6,985
Hih8 THA Other staff costs 72,544 83,627
Hh & TR AT &4t Other staff's retirement benefits
scheme contributions 10,102 7,551
89,368 98,163
ZER N & Auditor's remuneration 3,050 3,050
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 6,588 4853
RRAXZFERAE Cost of inventories recognised as
(B IEREFE#H3,685000 8T an expense (including allowance
(20144 : 4,776,000757T) ) for obsolete inventories of HK$3,685,000
(2014: HK$4,776,000)) 2,347,181 2,409,093
ME - BERREBZNE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 30,085 30,315
B RERERME SR Less: Amounts capitalised in inventories (253) (2,244)
29,832 28,071
FLMREFIRERERMZ Minimum lease payments under operating
4igisk A leases in respect of land and buildings 11,510 1,669
HEF Research and development expenses 12,992 8,347

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EE  BRRESNE .

REREERAHFWRERBLTH
BIREBARGAIRENT :

()

BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follow:

EEREE (a) Directors and chief executive
BHE IBR £ HEE 2015 FA
Han Wang Li Xu Total
Shuwang  Xiaodong Guang Jun 2015
FEr FiEn FiEx FEn FiEn
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HiTES Executive directors
e Fees - - — - —
Hihie : Other emoluments;
¥o 28 Salaries, allowances
KEMEF and other benefits 1,857 1,581 1,338 1,009 5,785
R Performance related bonuses
(BrsEn) (Note I) 110 99 83 66 358
BINEF|(H3E2)  Retirement benefits (Note 2) - 18 - - 18
Nt Sub-total 1,967 1,698 1,421 1,075 6,161

TR TEEHE TR ARMBEN
AR RARBER S HATRMEN
AR5 o

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.
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HZ2015F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

1. 5 @B REENE » I1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

) EEREFK (&) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)

Hith REE® 20155 @5
Fan Zhang Total
Shili Jianhua* 2015
FET FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHTES Non-executive directors
we Fees —_ — —

HihB < : Other emoluments:
e R RHEAMER Salaries, allowances

and other benefits —_ —_ —

NEt Sub-total — —_ —
ISR EEMS T EABRES The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
EAKRAR R AEEESFIZELN mainly for their services as directors of the Company and the

AR7& o Group.
BER

T@Ee Kan 2015 485

EYN L Wang  Lai Kuen, RER Total

Li Dapeng’ Dechen? Alice  Ng Gordon 2015

TEx TET FET TET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BUKHTEZ  Independent non-
executive directors

ne Fees 27 160 187 187 561
et Sub-total 27 160 187 187 561
B IERTEEMETERS The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
WEEARNARESMIZHENR above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
5 o

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K
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1. B2 - BHEREEME = 1.

() EEREE (&)

BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)

2015 45
Total
2015
FET
HK’000
o Total 6,722
il TBR TRE™ 2014F85
Han Wang FH AT Wang Total
Shuwang ~ Xiaodong ~ LiGuang ~ Xujun" Lijun®** 2014
FAT FET FET FHET FHT FHT
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

HWTES Executive directors
ik Fees — — — — — —

HipBe - Other emoluments:
e 28 Salaries, allowances
REMER and other benefits 1751 | 654 1412 18] [I19 6,117
ERERTA Performance

(MzE1) related bonuses (Note 1) 63 — 51 — — 114
BINEF|(HE2)  Retirement benefits (Note 2) — 17 — — — 17
et Sub-total 1,814 671 463 18l [,I19 6,248

R TEEHE TR ARMBEN
AR RARBEREHATRMEN
AR5 o

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were mainly

for their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.
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BE2015F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

1. 5 @B REENE » I1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

) EEREFK (&) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
TR REE  2014F485
Fan Zhang Total
Shili Jianhua 2014
TET TRET TRET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHUTES Non-executive directors
e Fees — — _
Hipis - Other emoluments:
e o =M REMBER Salaries, allowances
and other benefits _— 167 167
NEt Sub-total = 167 167
PR TEEMO T EEBRS The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
EAKRAR R AEEESFIZELN mainly for their services as directors of the Company and the
BRFE o Group.
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BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

1. 5 @B REENE o 1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

) EEREH (&) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
HER
IeE Kan 2014 F 485t
Wang Lai Kuen, RER Total
Dechen Alice  Ng Gordon 2014
THET THET TET TET

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BUKHTEE Independent non-

executive directors

itk Fees 190 190 190 570

et Sub-total 190 190 190 570
BT EEM e T ESRE The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
BEEARNNTESHIZHER above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

ﬁ% o

2014 45t

Total

2014

FAET

HK000

st Total 6985
Bmo s EAMEENEBE0(5E Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
12B3IBR204E 12831 B ILE emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2015 and 3|

EREEAMS - December 2014.
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BE2015F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

1. EE - BHEREEME =

(@)

EER4E (©)
FRARRBZESHREE  £X

I BN < M BRBHERBEM

RERSE ZME

BifaE -
M

@

*%

##

HH##

BRRBEARMTHEE SR
FREARREREERRET °

AT ERHORIREN B A
B -

R20I5E |1 A 10 BERE
R2014% 11 A | BEZE
R20I5% 11 A 10 BEHE
R2015% 6 A 5 AEHE
R20145 11 A | BEHE

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)

Li Guang is both director and chief executive officer of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for

services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
Notes:

(1) The performance related bonuses are determined with reference
to the individual performance and group performance and
recommended by the remuneration committee.

(2)  Retirement benefits of certain directors are borne by CALT.

& Appointed on 10 November 2015

**%  Appointed on | November 2014

# Resigned with effect from 10 November 2015
##  Resigned with effect from 5 June 2015

### Resigned with effect from | November 2014
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BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

1. 5 @B REENE o 1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) AfIREHFMAL

AfimzmEH AL EEEA(2014
FOM)ES - OUESF  F
KEBH - Eft— (20145 « —
fERFMALTZMSIT

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included four (2014: four)
directors. Amongst the four directors, Li Guang is the chief
executive officer. The emoluments of the remaining one (2014:

one) highest paid individual were as follows:

2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
e REAMER Salaries and other benefits 1,137 [,133

2. BiIR 12. TAXATION
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000

AFEEHAHBE Tax charge for the year comprises:

FEBRAEH PRC Enterprise Income Tax

BRI Current taxation 2,619 [,135
EFREIR Underprovision in prior year 82 222
2,701 1,357
BT EE % (i 30) Deferred tax credit (Note 30) — )
2,701 1,296
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#Z20/5F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

12. BilE (&)

AR A S ) SRR A AT g 2 S AR

12. TAXATION (Continued)

The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the profit before

K taxation is as follows:
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
BRAR B A Profit before taxation 74,854 94,280
R BEE SRR 25% Tax charge at PRC Enterprise Income
STE BB Tax rate of 25% 18,714 23,570
FBEBERARAELRER Share of results of associates and joint ventures (37,475) (33954)
BRATBAZRBTE Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (1,867) (4,633)
NAHBAL 2 BB E Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 4,572 6,686
RCHERATMRGRRZE Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
Mz E not recognised 2,928 3,128
RERABEZBETE Tax effect of losses not recognised 15,847 8512
BRAEAIARCHER 2 HIBEE Utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised (321) (2,674)
RETEMERRAREDE Tax effect of temporary differences
BHEERR ZR 2 M TE attributable to undistributed
profits of PRC subsidiaries 221 439
EFRETR Underprovision in prior year 82 222
AFEEHIAZ L Tax charge for the year 2,701 1,296

ARASRERMERNLEELARRE
BEZERBUGEM - MU ARFHHRE LT

/e

BE(PEARKMBELZREHRIE)
([EERBRED REEMBIEER
& FEMBARRMEAZRER

25% ©

ERIA 2 FEETIRHIFE30 °

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 30.

® 2015 F#H

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made as the Group has no

assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the People's Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

13. IR 13. DIVIDENDS
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000

FARA/D KRS : Dividends recognised as distribution

during the year:
B 2014 FRERE — 2014 final, paid - HKO.7 cent per share

FRO7BM0145F : &) (2014: Nil) 30,583 =

ARRESHELREZE2015F 12 A3
BIEFERMRBRE(014F : BiR07
Al o

14. BEEF-EX

ARFRAAEESRERBFERT
SIBEEH -

No final dividend in respect of the year ended 3| December 2015
(2014: HKO.7 cent per share) has been proposed by the directors of the
Company.

. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to owners of

the Company is based on the following data.

2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
BIESt EBRERBR 2 B Earnings for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 75,469 90,894
Number of shares
ROBE

2015 2014

RIEEERERRNZ Weighted average number of shares for the
mEESRMmHEE purposes of basic earnings per share 4,368,995,668 3977,762,791

ARMEANDECRITEEL B -
iz EFISTe: S PRl

No diluted eamings per share has been presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.
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#Z20/5F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

15. REME I5. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2015 2014
FET TRET
HK$’000 HK$000
NEE FAIR VALUE

REA] At beginning of the year 148,694 128,720
B 50 38 % Exchange realignment (8,705) (435)
NE Additions —_ 19,522

ERNEEERZ A FEEN Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss 621 887
NS At end of the year 140,610 148,694

ARERBEEAEHENETE LS
FIFAASEE 02 AANEERDR
ATVEERHE - BHBREMELN
REANEAR - REMENFE -

A& B R20I5F K204 12A31R
CEREMELATEERBAEELER
B BN A BB ERHE R ETRD
TERRARDREBBESETZFEMSE
e REMEZFHANELEMS AR
HEBE (ER)REMEZE
WAERCEEREE -

REFHMEZLAFER  ARANEZR
BERERENAZENAE -

TREINEBNABETLZERENER
FHE(LERMER ZEERTEZRBAZR
BIRDVEMAEMBRAFESHR(FE—
EF=R)RBELAVEFEGAREL
ABRRBENR)CER -

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties. The investment properties are located in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 3| December
2015 and 2014 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on the date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. The valuation of
the investment properties was arrived by reference to sales evidence
as available in the market, and where appropriate, on the basis of

capitalisation of the income potential of similar properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels | to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.



15. EYE &)

HERRRAZSEAE 2 RENE
Investment properties

held by the Group in

the statement of

financial position

LR ERRE MM BRNE
Commercial property in

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, PRC

WISE
12A31H
ZATE
Fair vlaue
asat

3| December
2015

Tén
HK$'000

42494

=g up s U
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BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

I15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

WI4E
128318
ZAYE
Fair vlaue

as at

31 December
2014

TR
HK$'000

4494

ATEER
Fair value

hierarchy

224

Level 3

HETEREE
PN £
Valuation
technique(s)
and key input(s)

BRAAME
Direct Capitalisation
Approach

IRBNNBA:
The key inputs are;

PR LN -

Significant

unobservable input(s)

B b R 4%(20145 - 4%) -
BHREERS WA ZERL -

NERERRTHR

Capitalisation rate, taking into

ATER
BABEE
ATEZBE
Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to

the fair value

-EN i3 EN
FlEME

The higher the

account the capitalisation of capitalisation rate, the

rental income potential, nature of ~ lower the fair value,

the property, prevaiings market
condttion, of 4% (2014 4%)

REGTARAREST (2014
£ BYARARERT)  ER
FEREEERERTALES
ENEH RER  ENRIE

RESERIRZR

Monthly rent, based on net
floor area, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account age, location and
individual factors such as size of
property of RMB83/sqm. (2014

RMB8Ysqm)

RB#E - ATEE

0

o}

The higher the
monthly rent, the
higher the fair value.
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#Z20/5F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

15. REYE &)

HERREAREEA 2 RENR

Investment properties
held by the Group in
the statement of

financial position

RREEEEENTZ IXEAK

Industrial complex in Tieling,

Liaoning Province, PRC

WISE
128310
ZATE
Fair vlaue
asat

31 December
2015

Tén
HK$'000

98116

MERNDBEAXERE =R -

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

® 2015 F#H

I15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

W48
128318
LAV

Fair vlaue

asat  ATESA

3| December

747
HK$'000

104200 E=%K
Level 3

Fair value
2014 hierarchy

HENEREE
Bl
Valuation
technique(s)
and key input(s)

BRAAME
Direct Capitalisation
Approach

IEBARES:
The key inputs are;

1) BA{LSLE
)
) Rl
)

(
(
(
(2) Monthly rent.

Capitalisation rate;

EEFRE LN -
Significant

unobservable input(s)

B A1 b &5 55%(014% -
555%) B REERSUA
BB DEUERBTHR
Capitalisation rate, taking into
account the capitalisation of
rental income potential, nature of
the property, prevailing market
condition, of 5-5.5% (2014:
5-55%)

RABBFRKARE 2T(2014
£ 8YARARE L) £
RESEARERERDALR
NEGETRER  LEARY
FUERRRZERIRR
Monthly rent, based on net
floor area, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account age, location and
individual factors such as location
and size of property of RMBI2/
sqm. (2014 RMBI2/sqm)

AR
BABEE
MEZER
Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to

the fair value

-EN i3 RN
FlEME -

The higher the
capitalisation rate, the

lower the fair value.

AR AVES

0

o}

The higher the
monthly rent, the

higher the fair value.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both years.
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16. ¥1% - BE R

16.

BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE ®E BIREH

HELH REE  ERRA AR
i &2 Plant, Wind BARIE BAZRE
Leasehold  equipment energy Moulds  Furniture RE  RBIR
land and and  plantand and  and office Motor  Construction 2
buildings  machinery  equipment tools  equipment vehicles i progress Total
AT FAT AT FAT AT FAT 2. FAT

HS00  HKSOOD  HKSOOO HKSOOO HKSOMD HKSOMD HKSUMD SO
A CosT
R0I4E1A 1R At | January 2014 16750 2889 BI0 30306 1979 20763 76 552086
1A% Bxchange realignment (61) ) (159) (101) (3) (59) (122) (1983)
AE Addtions 885 1483 1945 6640 2180 296 - 16095
e Disposals - (4686) (2307) 01) ) (669) - (7757)
EE Transfer — 4757 — — — (4757) —
0145128318 At 31 Decernber 2014 17,574 18613 43391 36,754 21,934 7,997 6847 558,641
B R B Fichange realignment (L105) — (LI12)  (26538) (11 1) (1,000 (d00)  (33,139)
e Addtions - 4 957 3,106 1,563 m 37 7530
e Disposdls - (638) (65) )} (121) (582) - (1,443)
015512831 A At 31 December 2015 16,469 17637 408,276 3N 2,59 1,097 6804 531,589
HEREE DEPRECIATION

AND IMPAIRMENT

RNI4E1R 18 At | fanuary 2014 4074 17,126 94465 21378 12038 11,569 - 160850
EHBE Exchange realignment (18) (57) (3%0) ) (19 (28) = (583)
AR Provided for the year 8% 1260 20265 174 3079 2050 - 30315
HER A Eiminated on disposéls (4083) (188) (49) ) (4n - (4795)
014512831 A At 3] Decernber 2014 4952 14266 114,152 24,003 15,294 13,120 - 185787
ERBE Fichange realignment (@) o) @) (1,508 (57 (626) - (m
AR Provided for the year 900 803 20,755 3,380 2,53 1,994 - 30,085
{H R Eiminated on disposéls - (40) ®3) 6])) (103) (406) - (643)
015512831 A At 31 December 2015 5,429 14116 126,163 25,844 16,873 14,082 - 20507
BEE CARRYING VALUES
®015% 12831 A At 31 December 2015 11,040 352 282,113 11,868 51 8,015 6804 329,082
0145128318 At 3] Decernber 2014 12622 4347 319770 12751 6640 9877 6847 3854

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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BE2015F 12531 HiEFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

16. 1% - BMERRE &) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
FaHE - BERREEB NERER The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
ATERFE : straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
ME L REF 3-5% 3K i 4 Leasehold land and buildings 3 - 5% or over the unexpired lease terms,
MBE - AR whichever is shorter
RERE
BE - BEREE 9-15% Plant, equipment and machinery 9-15%
BOEERELRE 5-15% Wind energy plant and equipment 5-15%
EARTA 25% Moulds and tools 25%
RARPLERE  10-25% Fumiture and office equipment 10 - 25%
RE 18 - 25% Motor vehicles 18 - 25%
20154 12 A 31 B BR % 1A 49307,000 The net book value of a motor vehicle as at 31 December 2015 of
AT (20144 : 433,000 7T ) 8B AR approximately HK$307,000 (2014: HK$433,000) is held under a finance
BHEEHARA - lease.

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK
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BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

17. & 17. GOODWILL
F&T
HK$ 000
A COST
M2014F 1 A1 H 20145 At | January 2014, 31 December 2014 and
12 A3 BR20I15F 128318 31 December 2015 15,397
WE IMPAIRMENT
R2014F 1 A1 8 201445 At | January 2014, 31 December 2014 and
2A31B&2015%F 12831 H 3| December 2015 13,393
IREE CARRYING VALUES
2014 12831 B & At 3| December 2014 and 3| December 2015
20154 12831 H 2,004

REEAANS  BECOEZRSE
EnBcENReELEN(REES
Bfzl) -

AREERNRTRMEEERRENA
HAFMBREEMSE cReREEA
REME . FHERT B 22,004,000 7T
ZHE MZBAKBEEEMAEZ
s BRIGES HE 28R XR9.09%
(20144 : 897%)5H & - ARME RIS
HENRRERASELENBEERR
ZiE o ERERGEENZERR A
MEEAEZ BT EREDAER
AR E S o
BEWSFNANALFE A&
EEERTHMECEN B RSELE
AL L FRIRE

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
the individual cash generating unit (“CGU") of the Operation of Wind

Farm segment.

Management of the Group performed impairment review for the
remaining goodwill of HK$2,004,000 based on cash flow forecast
derived from the financial budget covering a period of 5 years, which
was prepared by using the most recent financial results with projections
approved by management at discount rate of 9.09% (2014: 8.97%) for
the Operation of Wind Farm segment, which reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to

exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairment of its CGU containing

goodwill.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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HZ2015F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

18. EEE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
RB R RiTAR  RESFTRE
Development  Technology Licence L
cost know-how right Total
(Hfita) (Hiitb) (Hitc)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
TET TET TET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Z%S COST
201451 A1 B At | January 2014 — 28,034 6,861 34,895
B 5 AR Exchange realignment - (95) (18) (113)
NE Additions 16,098 4740 6,211 27,049
R2014F 12 A31 B At 3| December 2014 16,098 32,679 13,054 61,831
B 5 A% Exchange realignment (%41) (1908) (679) (3528)
NE Additions 10,024 37,248 | 684 48,956
LGNS IN Acquired on acquisition of
(Fft7E40) a subsidiary (Note 40) — 151,991 = 151,991
R20I15% 12431 A At 31 December 2015 25,18 220010 14,059 259,250
B AMORTISATION
R2014% 1 A1 B At | January 2014 = 3507 687 4,194
B AR Exchange realignment — (12) 2) (14)
ERXH Charge for the year — 4,168 685 4853
2014512431 B At 31 December 2014 = 7,663 1,370 9,033
B 5 % Exchange realignment = (607) (146) (753)
FRAXH Charge for the year — 4086 2,502 6,588
201512431 A At 3| December 2015 — [1,142 3726 14,868
BEE CARRYING VALUES
201512431 R At 31 December 2015 25,18 208,868 10333 244,382
R2014F 12 A31 B At 3| December 2014 16,098 25016 1,684 52,798

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

® 2015 F#H
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18.

o 7

CEBE (8)

LB A EREREER T MR

3

IR 5F

B gm0 6= 8

iR 5F

BisE

() ZeHEBIFEREBERIADE
RAZENFAEED A G E ke
BEDMFEKAE

(b) ZeHEARLEERNZERH
ERIDPBEZE&ERERKA MM
BREERKE - RAFE @ 3%
151,991,000 7 7T #5 B 4k B B 3 40 P72t
ZHBRARMBARREE I SMWE
BN Tt B R LA % QMW ok Tk B R L A
Bz A FE - REEHAMFE
37,248,000 % 7L 38 FA 7 4 BE 3MW Sk 7
B 5B [ A 5 1 0 38 P EE AR B B B K
A FEAEBESHBRAHHER
ZEMIFES) ©

(0 ZeBEEIEAEFIPEZE2NEN

R m R BT A

18.

BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the following period:

Development cost
Technology know-how

Licence right

Notes:

@

5 years
6 years - 8 years

5 years

The amounts represent costs to develop graphene-based cathode
material for batteries and high capacity lithium batteries for the “Energy
Storage and Related Products” segment.

The amounts represent costs incurred for the technology know-
how for the manufacture of various models of wind turbines for the
“Wind Energy Related Products” segment. During the year, additions of
HK$ 151,991,000, representing the fair value of technology know-how for
the manufacture of |.5MW excitation magnet directdrive wind turbine
and 2MW permanent-magnet directdrive wind turbine, acquired as a
result of the acquisition of a subsidiary as detailed in note 40. The other
additions of HK$37,248,000 during the year represented development
costs incurred for the technology know-how for the manufacture of
3MW permanent-magnet directdrive wind turbine that satisfy the criteria
for recognition as set out in the Group's accounting policy (note 3).

The amounts represent global positioning system terminal development

licence rights for the “Telecommunication Business” segment.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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#Z20/5F 12731 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. REFE AT 2R

ARERBE QR KEFHBOT ¢

Details of the Group's investments in associates are as follow:

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

2015 2014

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FEETIRE Z AR Cost of unlisted investments 416,592 416,592

BE S B Exchange realignment 28,051 54,080
BEBEEEERAEMEEFX Share of post-acquisition loss and other

(R E KA B R ARER G H]) comprehensive expense, net of dividend
received and unrealised profit (37,056) (15,072)
407,587 455,600

R20I5F12A31H EEMBREKRE
BEKE B EE & 2 782 681,000
B JL(2014 5 < 681,000 7T ) ° 72015
FNANB  AEERNBELRHEE
EmmBmEHRBE R MRLEEESE
& B 3 % F14,182,0005 L2014 4 :
7,580,000 7T) °

4
FER

BHZE04F N2A3BLEEE &M
R B2 RB MR AR (AIBEMNMm K
e R BT AR A A ([ER M e
Bt ]) 2 H AR B M AR N R R R B B AN
Z o HMRFTER  AEBEREHMNE
EE A Z R4 28% B A E35% 0 &
FRAEHE W 4,932,000 TR B P

® 2015 F#H

Included in the cost of unlisted investments as at 3|1 December
2015 is goodwill of HK$681,000 (2014: HK$681,000) arising on the
acquisition of associates. As at 31 December 2015, unrealised profit of
HK$ 14,182,000 (2014: HK$7,580,000) arising on the sales of goods by
the Group to associates which are not yet sold by the associates at the

end of reporting period.

During the year ended 3| December 2014, the other shareholders of
RN KRB RAEIRER AT (formerly known as RN ALK ik
R MTBBR A R]) (“Suzhou Wind Energy”) made additional capital
contribution to Suzhou Wind Energy. The Group's equity interest in
Suzhou Wind Energy was decreased from 41.28% to 35% after the
capital contribution made by the other shareholders. Gain on deemed
disposal of HK$4,932,000 is recognised in profit or loss in prior year.



e MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. REtEABI 2R o)

EXBEATZHMBEHME

BERASBEEARBENR 2 MBENY
ZENNMT - LTHBERBE 258
ERAMBIRER(REDEREREER
RETR T

BeENRRABEERZAEGAPBR

BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material
associate is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associate's financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these

KA o consolidated financial statements.
IHERERNRESERAT(IEE Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
B Longyuan”)
2015 2014
FEx FET
HK$’000 HK$000
MENVEE Current assets 908,005 916,968
FREEE Non-current assets 940,107 1,082,956
REAE Current liabilties (677,702) (361,049)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (716,178) (1,137,383)
8z HZE
2015 20144
12A31 8 12 A31H
LFE HEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
Wz Revenue 138,171 182,743
FERRMNREEBAER Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 14,627 37,786
FREWHERARRE Dividends received from the
associate during the year 8,296 7,695

Annual Report 2015
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BE2015F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

19. REFEABI 2R o)

EXBEATZMBANNE (&)

IHERENIBREEROA(NIHRE
R (E)

LM B ER R BRGA R BRERT
HER N R Pl S 2 BRE A R

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)

Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Longyuan”) (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

2015 2014

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

TEERCEERE Net assets of Jiangsu Longyuan 454,232 501,492

AEENTIAHER Proportion of the Group's ownership

rEEEEZADL interest in Jiangsu Longyuan 25% 25%
ARERIHFERER 2 REE Carrying amount of the Group's interest

in Jiangsu Longyuan 113,558 125,373

EEREX ZEE AT EEEH

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
AEEDLFARBR The Group's share of loss for the year (10,743) (13,309)
AEBERZEHE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
NEEZZ BEREEE interests in these associates 294,029 330,227

MR20I15F R2014F 128318 K&EE
TEBENE ZFEBHINMEES

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK

Details of the principal associates of the Group at 31 December 2015
and 2014 are set out in note 43.
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BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

20. REBLEZER 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
REBNREBOE 2 IWEFHBFWT Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follow:
2015 2014
FET TIET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
REELFEZIFLTREMKA - Cost of unlisted investments in joint
B e A AR S ventures, net of pre-acquisition dividend 1,624,311 1624311
BE 5 B Exchange realignment 167,848 241,948
R ER - HRARES Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividend 49,809 65,733
EhEEFE Share of net assets 1,841,968 1,931,992
B R RERR Less: Impairment loss recognised (652,900) (652,137)
1,189,068 1,279,855
3 F TR AR A B 2007 EE W E A Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
M 2o A Y 55 28703 308,00008 7T HK$703,308,000 (2014: HK$704,071,000) arising on the acquisition of
(20144 : 7040710008 L) R&E & joint ventures arisen in 2007. Goodwill of HK$763,000 arose in 2010
015F 2831 BIEEE > 0I0FELE for additional interest of 5% in Jiangsu CASC Wind Turbine Manufacture
THEE 7630008 T ATIERAEERS Co., Ltd. which was fully impaired for the year ended 31 December
REBHEERAR S%BEIMER - B2 M 2015.
RE °
EXSRESHBRESEEE Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
AEREES AL E Y HEEEE Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint
EHLMT - U THBEEREE254 venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below
A B TR R (IR B S B TR SR YR represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements
SRR Y S5 o prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
A (D BT R L S PA Y 4 A B TR The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
EABE o consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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BE2015F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

20. REBLEZEL » 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint

EXGERRZMBEAME (&)

ventures(Continued)

TR EHEE R EERGERA Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,

A EmEED Ltd. (“Delphi”)
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
MEEE Current assets 1,061,557 1,319,510
FREEE Non-current assets 394,461 449614
mEAaE Current liabilities (767,305) (1,051,413)

NEEERABEBRATER

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the followings:

2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
RekBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 10,816 142,681
RPTRAR(TEEEIR Current financial liabilities (excluding trade
Hi R R A E) and other payables and provisions) 427,942 683,456
Bz Bz
2015 F 20144
12A31H 12A31H
HFEE HEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
Wi Revenue 3,200,148 3,385,504
FREMNRE2ABALR Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 367,739 358,621
FRERERERS Dividends received from Delphi
during the year 173,708 173,387

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

® 2015 F#H
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BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

EXGERECMBEANME (£)

IREHEERRBREERRARD
A(rEmE#)

FRFEREMBEATEIA

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint

ventures(Continued)

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,

Ltd. (“Delphi”) (Continued)

The above profit for the year include the following:

2015 2014

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

W& R8s Depreciation and amortisation 40,961 35,481
FEWA Interest income 295 160
FEF X Interest expense 8,890 11,709
PSR Income tax expenses 63,524 62,377

L HBERBERER GRS M BRRT
ﬂ/bZEAfﬁm%ﬂi* EZEE@{E%EE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in Delphi recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

2015 2014

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$000

ERECEETE Net assets of Delphi 688,713 717711
AEENERBAEEERZZADL  Proportion of the Group's ownership

interest in Delphi 49% 49%

EES Goodwill 601,839 639,152

RBBERETATERR ZE Effect of fair value adjustment at acquisition 213,384 245,832

AEENEREER CREE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Delphi 1,152,692 1,236,662

Annual Report 2015 ® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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BE2015F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2015

20. REBLEZER #) 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
EEREAZ B LEELSE Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not

individually material

2015 2014
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
AEEDHFARR The Group's share of loss for the year (4,374) (16,825)
R20I5E K014 12 318 - A& Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group at 3| December
TEAMDE Y EHIAM 43 2015 and 2014 are set out in note 43.
21. ﬂ{#tﬂ%*&g 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT
2015 2014
F#7 FET
HK$’000 HK$000
TR - RECARE () Unlisted shares, at cost (Note) 2,745 521
Bt : ZIRE AR AR ER 2 - AR A Note:  The investment is measured at cost less impairment as the directors
EZSRARTETEASETE - of the Company are of the opinion that the fair value cannot be
measured reliably.
22. BE 22. INVENTORIES
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
PR Raw materials 197,805 148,616
R Work-in-progress 42,676 173,084
BUK Finished goods 162,169 164,030
402,650 485,730

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK
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23. B RHMEWR

BOREMERRBIEE S ERRK
690,745,000/ 7T (20 144F : 805,945,000
BIT) - BIBR REREE 66,164,000 7T
(20145 67,062,000/ 7C) ° 20154 |2
A3IBZEBZRUABELERKE -
RBERBERTE=FNEKERS
256,633,000 7T (201 44F : 270,181,000
BIT) o BHER IZ5F (20145 | &5
F)VERABERELEE - HA 178,194,000
BT (20145 260,438,0007 7T ) #% 72 R
SHRB—FREHE ZEREBESE
Wkeh - AEEHEE S M RIRHR
BHFTREFHI0B (20145 : 90H)H
EEH ROTESHRBATERIER
FREEBHE-—FANEE - RIREDR
BREZZAH(EEREERBHEE)
SRz B S UK (R B ) < Rk 5
T

BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of
HK$690,745,000 (2014: HK$805,945,000) net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$66,164,000 (2014: HK$67,062,000). The amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2015 included retention receivables for the
sales of wind turbines and energy storage and related products to third
parties of HK$256,633,000 (2014: HK$270,181,000). The balances will
be settled upon the completion of warranty period of | - 5 years (2014:
| -5 years), of which HK$178,194,000 (2014: HK$260,438,000) will
be settled after one year from the end of the reporting period. For the
remaining balances of trade receivables, the Group allows credit periods
for 90 days (2014: 90 days) on average to its customers for sales of
goods and rendering of services. At the discretion of the executive
directors, several major customers were allowed to settle their balances
beyond the credit terms up to one year. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables, net of allowances, presented based on the
invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximated

the respective revenue recognition dates:

2015 2014

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$000

30BA Within 30 days 77,481 263918
31E9%0H Between 31 - 90 days 144,796 94,809
912180 H Between 91 - 180 days 1,208 352
181 &365H Between [81 - 365 days 352,034 363,533
HR—F Over | year 115,226 83,333
690,745 805,945

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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HZ2015F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 3/ December 2015

23. BES REMEWKS = 23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
AEFZEFREKRAEHBIEAERE Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
267,726,000 75 (2014 4 : 280,069,000 5 aggregate carrying amount of HK$267,726,000 (2014: HK$280,069,000)
TTMEWES  AREHERE B - M which are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
ANEFBW AT BAESREELRE A& Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
B ARGM EEARFEEAERS © I any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables
ZRWHR Z FHEER A 180 B (20144 - is 180 days (2014: 180 days).
180R) e
EEMHEREEZE S ERZERI Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

T
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
B Overdue by:
0£90H Between 0 - 90 days 1,208 352
91 £ 180H Between 91 - 180 days 243,400 246,061
838 180 B Over 180 days 23,118 33,656
B Total 267,726 280,069
ANEE— e AFTAEH365 BRI REKR The Group will normally recognise full allowance for all receivables
B HBE  BEEZBEBALH overdue 365 days because historical experiences is such that receivables
BEes B EN E — ek [E - that are past due 365 days are generally not recoverable, except for
HABEERNELFREEESHyET T some major customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of the
BERERS o executive directors.

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K
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BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

RERBEZEOT ¢ Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

2015 2014

FET TR

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FHEEER Balance at beginning of the year 67,062 66,701
B 50 38 % Exchange realignment (898) (94)

REBE SRR ZRERE Impairment loss recognised in respect

of trade receivables - 455

FRRAERR Balance at end of the year 66,164 67,062

REREEREAEISBER/ RRF
PEARER B & B AR 5 ERRE R
BIRY - AREL BER LT HERET
BEMERR -

RERERNHEF  AEBZHTE
SHEHEKOeTHEERP2EEE
ERRERPZEERE -BTEFZ
RELDEZBTEELBE TR -
AEBLEFRERREZEERE
61%(2014F : 65%) & 5 FE UK BE & 81 B
IMERAE o

NEBR0ISFEI2A3B ZH e
WHBIEREKE & D FMRE 12214000
# TT(20144F 1 129720005 7T ) B
FEEEGTE ZES 19784300074 7T
(2014 4F : 184,877,000 7T ) + AJ Y a1 4%
1B 38,404,000 7 7T (2014 5F : 49,316,000
B ERBEIRNSEE ZRKER
668,607,000 7T (2014 4F : 265,377,00075
TIREHARREECEREEE 2B
£24£20,540,000 7% 7T (2014 £F : 44,865,000
BT o

BHEWISENANBILEE A&E
P EWEE 2 BRERTE 180 B (20144 :
180 B ) AR °

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been overdue 365 days or/
and have no material transactions with the Group during the year. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's executive directors
and marketing team would assess the potential customer's credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement history. 61% (2014
65%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

have the best credit history managed by the Group's marketing team.

Included in the Group's other receivables at 3| December 2015 are
dividend receivable from a joint venture of HK$12,214,000 (2014
HK$12,972,000), deposits for purchase of inventories in the PRC
of HK$197,843,000 (2014: HK$184,877,000), VAT recoverable
of HK$38,404,000 (2014: HK$49,316,000), bills receivable of
HK$668,607,000 (2014: HK$265,377,000) in relation to the settlement
of trade receivables and bills receivable of HK$20,540,000 (2014:
HK$44,865,000) in relation to the settlement of dividend receivable

from a joint venture.

All bills receivables of the Group are aged within 180 days for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 180 days).

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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25.

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

FEWr/FEfTBE AT

FhBERAFREEFEEERENRK
52,505,000 78 7C(2014 4 : 239,971,000 77T)
% & 5 FE U 825,293,000 jT(2014
F 1 349,069,00087T) - FEEN AR
B RERBRBERGEEREE - B
SEMFAEER  RERFHEHERD
(FERRHNEERFEER)BIOARFE
2o F 84 45 £52,939,0007 (2014 %5 ¢
3,122,000 87 ) AEER - RERIZEXK

fEiE -

ERNEZAARBEEZIENK
240,663,00078 7 (2014 4 : 149,141,000/
J) o ZERBERERR  £EKE365
BEE 8 - F#h 458478800078 T AEE
e RERIEERER - #HE2145F12
31 H 99,700,000/ 7t & 78 W 5118 B B
WISFERHLES o

el FEft & E R EM
FRBE

GE A BIERIA B 15K 100,244,000
B JL(20144F : 1088130008 L) * H
BEERTAE D ¥668430007% 7T
(20144 : 70,988,000/ 0) * RE E FF
K485%(20144F : 6%)st B - BB E
X eECEXENASERAREE
£50868000B T2 THRIEF - 55
33,401,000 70(20144F : 37,825,000 7T )
RE  BRMEEAREF20I5F 12 A
31 Bz BB 706684300078 70(2014 4F ¢
70,988,000 7 7T ) K H i 4 #4 21,963,000
7 L2014 4F © 23,324,00078 7T ) 5] 3L 1
ZRSHEENERRAECEZL
WREFRETEMEENREHRIEE
B ARAEZRABEREEDLERG
TERREHRE 2EAREE Bkt
ZRENBEEFETHEE -
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

Included in the amounts due from associates are prepayment for
inventories of HK$52,505,000 (2014: HK$239,971,000) and trade
receivables of HK$825,293,000 (2014: HK$349,069,000). For
prepayment for inventories, the amount is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and will be utilised upon receipt of inventories. For trade
receivables, the amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has
credit periods for 90 days for sales of goods mainly wind energy
related products. The remaining balance of HK$2,939,000 (2014:
HK$3,122,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

Included in the amounts due to associates are trade payables of
HK$240,663,000 (2014: HK$149,141,000). The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and has credit period of 365 days. The remaining
balance of HK$788,000 are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. Amount of HK$99,700,000 at 3| December
2014 was receipt in advance and was fully utilised in 2015.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT VENTURES

Non-current balance

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$100,244,000 (2014: HK$108,813,000), of which loans advanced to
the joint venture amounted to HK$66,843,000 (2014: HK$70,988,000)
that bear fixed interest rate at 4.85% (2014: 6%) per annum. The joint
venture has pledged its land and buildings with a carrying amount
of HK$50,868,000 to the Group to secure the loan. The remaining
amount of HK$33,401,000 (2014: HK$37,825,000) is non-interest
bearing. The joint venture has entered into arrangements with
the Group in connection with the above loans of HK$66,843,000
(2014: HK$70,988,000) and other balance of HK$21,963,000 (2014:
HK$23,324,000) as at 31 December 2015 that these amounts shall be
repaid from the proceeds upon the realisation of the land and buildings
and certain other assets of that joint venture. The directors of the
Company considered that the amount due from the joint venture will
not be settled within 12 months from the end of the reporting period,

therefore classified as non-current asset.
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FEY TEMHESELES

mEN &R

ZEE R BIERYE & (R 55£28251,000
# 7(20144F : 30,003,000/ 7T ) © 15
BEFEHERKTEECENERE
Re BRWITFERBLERBLE -
T &R 45 84 107,000 78 7T (2014 58+ 344,000
B AEER  RERRERERE -

FE A & 1 % 788,000 7L(2014 4F :
66,0008 7) AEET - RERRERE
B H =204 12 A31 H6237,0007%
TAETEECEZEFPNMBER -
ZEECERBRENAREXNER
SR REERRER o ZEBN20I5
FRYMEE -

RITEN CHBRITHER

RITEL CHIPRITHER

iR 1T & 88 1R00I%ZE 1 25%(2014 5 :
0.01%E 1.25%) 2 BITMIHEF KT & ©

BROBREBETINEHERYEER
PONEHEHER A -
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

Current balance

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$28,251,000 (2014: HK$30,003,000), which represents the retention
receivables for the sales of wind turbines to a joint venture that
took place in prior years and will be settled upon the completion of
warranty period in 2017. The remaining balance of HK$107,000 (2014:
HK$344,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

The amounts due to joint ventures of HK$88,000 (2014: HK$66,000)
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. Amount
of HK$6,237,000 at 31 December 2014 was a financial guarantee
granted to a customer of a joint venture. The joint venture deposited
the same amount to the Group as a guarantee deposit under the

arrangement. The balance was fully settled in 2015.

BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range from
001% to 1.25% (2014: 0.01% to |.25%) per annum.

Included in bank balances are the following amounts denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they

are related.
2015 2014
FEx FET
HK$’000 HK$000
11,614 359617

B & # R 17T 7 X 1R035%(2014 4 ¢
035%) Z B EFH K5 B o B HEMPRT
77 3£696,0007% JL(2014 4 : 7,779,000
T EEREETRABEZER - R
WICFIALEBHAEERRER U5
BRARBEE -

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.35% (2014:
0.35%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits, amounting to
HK$696,000 (2014: HK$7,779,000), have been pledged to secure
certain bank facilities. It will be released in March 2016 upon the
settlement of the related borrowings and are therefore classified as

current assets.
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27. B RE M 27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BEOREMERRBEEZENR
218,939,000 7£(20144F : 1,055,807,000
BIL) c AREBBRMEFRE0RE
0RKEEH - BHEMNRNMEHRR
BREZHHRRSITET

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$1,218,939,000 (2014: HK$1,055,807,000). The Group normally
receives credit period for 30 to 90 days from its suppliers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the end of

the reporting period:

2015 2014

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

30BA Within 30 days 353,564 235,162
31E9%H Between 31 - 90 days 359,121 452,160
912180 H Between 91 - 180 days 110,991 191,003
181 &365H Between [81 - 365 days 237,043 124,072
HR—F Over | year 158,220 53410
1,218,939 1,055,807

R2ISF2A3IE - AEEZHME
50 B 35 48 T A2 JE 51 5K IB 1,246,000 78
J(20144F : 259000078 L) » B E
X IB.8,953,0007% 7T (2014 4 : 257,259,000
BIr) - JBE{RE £2387,000% (2014
£ 125350007 7C )« JE 5FiE B K A
1358400078 7C(20144F : 15683000757 ) *
PRt AET 4 4,108,000 7T (2014 4F
4,363,000 7T )  FE I R #8 27,471,000 %
TC(2014 4 : 3148200078 70 ) & U B Bt 1B
2 ) FE R (B 72,673,000 L2014 4 ¢
=)o

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K

Included in the Group's other payable at 31 December 2015 are
accruals for construction work of HK$ 1,246,000 (2014: HK$2,590,000),
receipt in advance from customers of HK$8,953,000 (2014:
HK$257,259,000), project guarantee deposits of HK$2,387,000
(2014: HK$2,535,000), accrued transportation cost of HK$ 13,584,000
(2014: HK$15,683,000), office rental payable of HK$4,108,000 (2014:
HK$4,363,000), bills payable of HK$27,471,000 (2014: HK$31,482,000)
and consideration payable for the acquisition of a subsidiary of
HK$72,673,000 (2014: Nil).
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28. WARRANTY PROVISION

Warranty provision represents the present value of the directors’
best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be
required under the Group's obligations for warranties of local sales of

wind turbines.

(REBEEE) Movement in the warranty provision:
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
FH 2 iR Balance at beginning of the year 74,032 35,937
b 30 8B Exchange realignment (5,811) (121
RATE A Additional provisions recognised 59,925 50,452
BRkEE Utilisation of provision (21,888) (12,236)
FIR 7 5% Balance at end of the year 106,258 74,032
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29. B8 29. BORROWINGS
2015 2014
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
RERITER(MTa) Short-term bank loans (Note a) 533,898 478,862
Hi sz e R (Mt a) Short-term other loans (Note a) 119,363 190,145
IR E AR I E o (Fifatb) Short-term portion of shareholder’s loans
(Note b) 477,453 316,909
R EFREE S (Fztb) Long-term portion of shareholder's loans
(Note b) 453,579 671,847
Hi REBEHR (M) Long-term other loans (Note c) 40,583 57,044
1,624,876 1,714,807
B FRRBEEMN—FR Less: Amount due within one year
BE 2 3R under current liabilities (1,130,714) (985,916)
—FR B E 7 F0R Amount due after one year 494,162 728,891
AEBEEZIHERIMT The maturity of the Group's borrowings
is as follows”:
—FR Within one year 1,130,714 985916
MEZRF Between two to five years 453,579 671,847
BBRF Over five years 40,583 57,044
1,624,876 1,714,807
* eSS SR RIS o * Based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

® 2015 F#H
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2015 12 A 31 B Z 518 15 £ 1 48
iR 17 B $0533,898,0005% 7T 3 A R #
447,289,000 70 (2014 4 : 478,862,000
AT AR 377,760,0007T) °

B 77393898000/ T &% A R &
330,000,000 7T 722015 4F 3% @& & & F
E435% E4.85%5T B o R2014F 12
A3 B E E F F R5.6% % 696%5t
B 2 B 74188620005 7T A R I
330,428,000 TLE 7 2015 FBEEE o

5 3 140,000,000 % TL 1A 2015 F 12 & 78
RITAEFEZMEB23%EE o R
2014 12 A3 BERBBRITEERS
5N £.2.85% 5T B 2 B 560,000,000
BICE R 2015 FHBEERE o

EEXRER—FRNQI4F : —F
JEBEVARALAEEEERESE

FE AEATRASRZAZR
MEBARMARRGBEEREE
DA KRB ) ERER
119,363,000 7t 3k A K # 100,000,000
T(20145 : &) - ZEHIBREER
KBNS ER - REEFFE4.13%
STERAER2I6%F 12 AEE - 12014
FI12A31B % EE F A £532%%F
5.70%5T B 2 B 38 63,382,000 ;L 8 A
R # 50,000,000 7C % 126,763,000 JT
s A R 100,000,000 75 2 1 2015 F &
SEN -

BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@

The amount at 3| December 2015 represents unsecured bank loans
of HK$533,898,000 or RMB447,289,000 (2014: HK$478,862,000 or
RMB377,760,000).

Loan of HK$393,898,000 or RMB330,000,000 bears fixed-rate
interest ranging from 4.35% to 4.85% per annum in 2015. Loan of
HK$4 18,862,000 or RMB330,428,000 at 3| December 2014 bore fixed-
rate interest ranging from 5.6% to 6.96% per annum were fully repaid in
2015.

Loan of HK$140,000,000 bears floating-rate interest at Hong Kong inter-
bank offered rate plus 2.3% per annum in 2015. Loan of HK$60,000,000
at 31 December 2014 bore floating-rate interest at Hong Kong inter-
bank offered rate plus 2.85% per annum were fully repaid in 2015.

The loans are repayable within one year (2014: within one year) and are

used to finance the operations of the Group.

The Group also obtained loans in current year from Aerospace Science
and Technology Finance Co,, Ltd. (“ASTF"), a fellow subsidiary of CALT,
amounting to HK$ 119,363,000 or RMB100,000,000 (2014: Nil). The
amounts are unsecured and are guaranteed by CALT, bear fixed-rate
interest at 4.13% per annum and are repayable in December 2016.
Loans of HK$63,382,000 or RMB50,000,000 and HK$126,763,000 or
RMB 100,000,000 at 31 December 2014 bore fixed-rate interest ranging
from 5.32% to 5.70% were fully repaid in 2015.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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(b)

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

FABIE RN ETIR B B AR 2 T
NAMARB T BE(EAZEAN) B
27 B34 931,032,000 7T 3k A R
780,000,000 70 (2014 4 : 988,756,000
BT AR 780,000,000 7T)

ZAEREER  RETEFNE488%
E5.0%(20144F : 3.7%E5.0%) &
B o B 34774530008 T A R
400,000,000 7T (2014 £ : 507,054,000
7 7t 3 A R #400,0000007T )
155,172,000 7T 3% A B ¥ 130,000,000
TE(20144F = 164,793,000 7T ;% A K
# 130,000,000 7T ) % 298,407,000 7T
3k A R # 250,000,000 7 (2014 4 © 4 )
D RIZER216F48 - 2017F78 K
20185 3R 8 8- M20145F 12 A3
B 2 B 731690900058 7T 3 A R &
250,000,000 TLE 1A 2015 FREELS ©

ZAETE B AT D A I SRR
2 fF 2 B 740,583,000 7T 3 A R I
34,000,000 7T (2014 4F : 57,044,000 /%
stk A R#45000,0007T) ° 2B A
ERE - RPBEARRITEENERN
0.9 5 B15.09%(2014 4F : 5.54%) K% B
FERRERAR2020E 1| BREE
;ﬁ °
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The amounts represent loans advanced from CALT through
CASC's subsidiary, ASTF as the trustee in aggregate amounting to
HK$931,032,000 or RMB780,000,000 (2014: HK$988,756,000 or
RMB780,000,000).

The amounts are unsecured, bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 4.88%
to 5.0% (2014: 3.7% to 5.0%) per annum. Loans of HK$477,453,000
or RMB400,000,000 (2014: HK$507,054,000 or RMB400,000,000),
HK$ 155,172,000 or RMB130,000,000 (2014: HK$ 164,793,000 or
RMB130,000,000) and HK$298,407,000 or RMB250,000,000 (2014:
Nil) are repayable in April 2016, July 2017 and March 2018 respectively.
Loans of HK$316,909,000 or RMB250,000,000 at 3| December 2014
were fully repaid in 2015.

The amount represents a loan of HK$40,583,000 or RMB34,000,000
(2014: HK$57,044,000 or RMB45,000,000) advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured, bears
floating-rate interest at 0.9 time of the People’s Bank of China Benchmark
interest rate that is 5.09% (2014: 5.54%) per annum and is repayable in
full in November 2020.
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30. EEFHIE 30. DEFERRED TAXATION

RENGEAMBRRARME - ETEL
HREERAFECD THE - UTRBIE
MR RIERIBARBR AT -

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

2015 2014

FEx FET

HK$’000 HK$000

EEFIEEE Deferred tax assets 1,759 1937
BEERERE Deferred tax liabilities (19,731) (20831)
(17,972) (18,894)

REFER E-—FEERAZENRLT
HEABE(EE)REBEDHNT :

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Eft W
REMF RO KEF]
Revaluation  Hftt (i) Undistributed
of investment Others profits of st
properties (note)  subsidiaries Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
R2014F 1 A IR At | January 2014 8,366 (2,009) 12,622 18979
[ 5 R Exchange adjustments (12) 6 (18) (24)
BRRX Charge to profit or loss 221 66 439 726
B[z REENH PRC withholding tax paid — = (787) (787)
R2014E 12A31 B At 31 December 2014 8,575 (1,937) 12,256 18,894
& 5 3% Exchange adjustments (425) 114 (10} (922)
BaR&RXM Charge to profit or loss 155 64 221 440
BxftzRERMH PRC withholding tax paid - - (440) (440)
MR20I154 12 A31 B At 31 December 2015 8,305 (1,759) 11,426 17,972

i : ZFREZRBNHBRREBBE
HEZBRREE -

Note: The amount mainly represents temporary differences rising on

government grants and warranty provision.
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30.

BERIE )

R20I5F12A318 XK B H iR
B) F 7% 18 /&5 18 49540,829,0007% 7T (2014
£ 597,407,000 7t ) AT A /E 4K 85 K 2R
A e ER R R Bl ET AR s A 2R
B MARBEEERREENEE
o FIEEE 908770008 T ERER
ZIHR o REERBIIREE 135,846,000 4 7T
(2014 + 121,174,000 7T ) 7 £ 5 2 45
o HRABRTIEEEEB 201662
20205 (20144 : B20I54 220194 )
AFERNEE -

RIBERBEMEMERE - 820085 | A
| B #8 3k o B T 2 B BT B U F B R
BREABKRENR - AEBERZE
B T B 1 B R 9 IR i ) B B 2 RE AT IR
IR R TR 11,426,000 7L (2014 4F
12,256,000 7T ) o I £ 5t 1 BI [T /B A
AR 2 Ik s A B R 2= 58 49,133,000 7T
(20144 : 46,438,00078 70 ) N 4R & B 15
BEPEHEEHERE  TERNEE
BRI ERRE T 2 B O - MR
ZBE AR B A R AR REEE o

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the Group has estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$540,829,000 (2014: HK$597,407,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses during the year due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. During the year, tax losses of HK$90,877,000
were expired. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$ 135,846,000 (2014: HK$121,174,000) that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire within five
years from 2016 to 2020 (2014: from 2015 to 2019).

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from |
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of HK$ 11,426,000 (2014:
HK$12,256,000) has been provided in respect of temporary differences
attributable to those undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$49,133,000 (2014: HK$46,438,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.



e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2015 12 A31 B - BB 32,399,000
B 72(2014 5 : 35,052,00078 7T ) /4 F B B
FEREENE  BERZEREES
M T2 B o ZFEGRERE TR
BF(BEEDE  BEREZEAR) ZEE
FIFHIRS T2 33! FRERMER -
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31. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At 31 December 2015, government grants of HK$32,399,000 (2014:
HK$35,052,000) represent subsidies granted by PRC government
authorities for the purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment. The amount will be recognised in profit or loss over
5 to 33/, years according to the useful lives of the relevant land and

buildings (included in property, plant and equipment).

2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000

REZMAMA - Analysed for reporting purpose as:
FREBEE Non-current liabilities 31,295 33,879
mEBE Current liabilities 1,104 1,173
32,399 35,052
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32. R EHERIE 32. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE
ANEBCREREHERRE—&H5E - The Group has one of its motor vehicles held under finance lease. The
FHEA4E AR EAERE X lease terms is 4 years. Interest rate underlying the obligation under
BEBETE25% &I AR S5 HARE finance lease is fixed at 2.5% per annum. The lessee has purchase
EEERE - options upon expiring of the lease.

REEE BEHERE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2015 2014 2015 2014
FET FET TER THL
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
RMEMERMNKIE Amounts payable under finance lease
—FR Within one year 133 133 124 19
BBE—FERZRME  In more than one year but not
more than two years 133 133 130 124
BBEMEETZRAT  In more than two years but not
more than five years 23 157 22 152
289 423 276 395
B RS ER Less: future finance charges (13) (28) TEANA  TEANA
MEAERE Present value of lease obligation 276 395 276 395

B 12 AN EER Less: Amount due for settlement
ZHFBR(NARBEE within 12 months (shown under
T3IR) current liabilities) (124) (119)

1A FEEENZZFE  Amount due for settlement
after 12 months 152 276

REB7REREAENEAANEE The Group's obligation under the finance lease is secured by the lessor's
EEMBEER - charge over the leased asset.

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK



33.

34.

=g up s U
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE20/5F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

A 33. SHARE CAPITAL
D& E £8
Number of Amount
shares FET
HK$ 000
BAREEO.10/E T2 EEBR Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ETE Authorised:
R2014F1A1B - At | January 2014, 31 December 2014 and
2014% 12831 B 31 December 2015
K2015F 12431 R 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BEITMER Issued and fully paid:
R2014E 1 A1 B At | January 2014 3968,995,668 396,900
BT (M) Issue of shares (Note) 400,000,000 40,000
R2014F12A31B R At 31 December 2014 and
2015 12 A31 B 31 December 2015 4,368,995,668 436,900

Bzt : R2014€ 128158 & A & &
Astrotech Group Limited & 75 (F74)
BMEEBRARGMEE RRBE R -
VA& B 0.75 7 7T % 17 400,000,000 A&
REE0OI Bz LBk - REEE
ER2014F 12824 B5MK °

BXEREE

FEEEREL  HRRAEEASE

B ELE  RE AR EL A
R TEMAREIRRAEES -
EERARELFRETE -

ARBZEAREARAE  EFERE
RMEVREZEE RN ERNKE
ZBEREAENRRE RS EFEY
RAREHA AREED(BREETR
K BELREER))

ARBERETHRAEARE - B8
EZREARAREEEXNERHEAR
Rk BEOEEREARE -

Note: On |5 December 2014, the Company entered into a Placing and
Subscription Agreement with Astrotech Group Limited and Industrial
Securities (Hong Kong) Capital Limited for the issue of 400,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.75 per share. The subscription
was completed on 24 December 2014.

34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 29 and obligation under a finance
lease disclosed in note 32, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,

reserves and accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated

with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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35. £RtTH 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SR TEER Categories of financial instruments
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
EREE Financial assets
ERkEER(BERE R Loans and receivables (including cash
ReEEY) and cash equivalents) 2,716,465 2,802,411
At HERE Available-for-sale investment 2,745 [52]1
2,719,210 2,803,932
G =l Financial liabilities
B AR Amortised cost 3,217,110 3,092,670

Financial risk management objectives and policies

SREREEEERBUR

AEEBTESCRTEAEAHEER The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-
£ B REMBYRE - BB
ENAR - Bl EREERER B
BHRITER  ROTERRRE  BH
REMENTRER EHAZEERT
A7HRBEREMANRE - FlZS
TR A ERKREEZSFERBR
HRNTX °

sale investment, trade and other receivables, amounts due from/to
associates, amounts due from/to joint ventures, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on

how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

ARMITEUAET A EEEZEHE The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's daily

2 -EHETERERGHEAR A

operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures to

IR BB A R M FE 0 o 7 o B
2 EERAR  THARREDESAE
RAER R EER A AL ERE -

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K

ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risk.
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WEZ25F12A3BRXRSHFME
BITEAE AEERZEINCHERAER
BEMAX ZEAEERRIEGE I
RARFMEZEEECKEE  MAS
BREDTBEERMEENSZAEER
RAAEASEEL CMBERIIA
BEeBEWMERrL) BBEE
RREZRE AEEEEEDHE
AEREEEEM/NMIAEEAREZ
BT ERAMEREMERER UK
RERBETHREBHES - HRA
SESEARFRAARFZE S REYT
DR B8 5 R 29%(2014 F :
42%) 1 82%(2014%F 1 76%) » AW EE
RERE+ AEETHEZSEESE
Witz AT El & 88 - miRATERE 2
RBERRHZREEE - M E
ARREZRR AEEZEERRE
BERK -

BEAh - ARERE BB ETBEZ78%
(201445 : 78%) kB —H&eEhE A
HAEEEERBRET - AEERAY
GHENRIREBEE B REERR
He 17 %2 & sk ¥ il % T HA % B H B A5 K
Mo AEREREsE AR REERER
ZEERRK -

HRBROIFRIFERREREEZR
1 BROERZEERARBE -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31 December
2015 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position, while the Group's maximum exposure to credit
risk due to financial guarantees provided by the Group is the amount
of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees issued by the
Group as disclosed in Note 42. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. The Group has concentration of
credit risk as 29% (2014: 42%) and 82% (2014: 76%) of the total trade
receivables due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. The Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 78% (2014:
78%) of the total amounts due from joint ventures is due from one
joint venture. The Group monitors the exposure to credit in respect of
the amounts due from associates and joint ventures through exercising
influence or control over their financial and operating policy decisions

and reviewing their financial position on a regular basis.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts

are placed in banks with high credit ratings.

Annual Report 2015 _® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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35. £FfITH ) 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

EMEAREEEERBE (&)

s E kR
FEmE

REBAZE0I5F R 20145)F BIRTT
# 8R (58 R MT 5526) 20154 R 20145
FERITEBR(FANE)EBZES
MEFEER E‘@J‘ﬁ@%ﬁ < RO
B WERAEERSEE ST
KRR o

-1

REBIVATEIISER20I14FEE LR
TEER(FERMIFE26) ~ 2015F K 20144
TEEEEGREMEY)RERAE 0 E
EEREBE(FREMFEL)E@2 ATEF
Iﬂ & o ’-ﬁé@&tﬁﬂfﬁﬂ & 0 A @E/\\
BHHIRERNEREREEREEE
RITEE ©

AEERBERABENEARNFE
FRAMEIZ RBECRARER —H
FEEZRERENERBEEEHR
A RRITEEN EH)RE) o

HBETH

TRERED N IRETSERNRE
MAREZZNERR  RAAEEEHR
FNETYL2FRFTEMETE -

WEEERZFER LR THIOEEE
(2014%F : 0fAEZ) MABEAMT
BRROESTE  UAEEZHZR
A e T®’, EF4 135000782014
F 1 88,000/87T) °

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances for 2015 and 2014 (note 26 for details) and
variable-rate bank borrowings for 2015 and 2014 (note 29 for details).
The management continuously monitors interest rate fluctuation and

will consider further hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank balances for 2015 and 2014 (note 26 for details),
fixed-rate borrowings for 2015 and 2014 (note 29 for details) and
amounts due from joint ventures that bear fixed interest rate (note
25 for details). The management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider repaying the fixed-rate bank borrowings when significant

interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of People's Bank of China benchmark interest rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate borrowings at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated changes taking place at the beginning
of the year and held constant throughout the year.

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings have been [0 basis
points (2014: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$ 135,000 (2014: HK$88,000).
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency exposures as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposures should the need arise.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation

of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings from CALT as a significant source of
liquidity. In the opinion of directors, adequate sources of funding are
available to enable the Group to meet in full its financial obligations due

for the foreseeable future and manage its liquidity position.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end

of the reporting period.
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35. ﬁﬁﬂlﬁ- (4) 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
SREREEBERBE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
RBESER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REBELRFIERER Liquidity and interest risk tables
L 337 FRR
REAE ZERE-% RENEAR
Weighted OW-@8  -2=@F  Imonths  -FR§  EENL Total KEE
average  REXERXA  Lessthan 13 to |5 Over undiscounted ~ Carrying
effective  On demand | month months | year years Syears  cash flows amount

interest rate 7T & 7 FAT FAL 7&r 75 FAL
3 HKS Vo0 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS Vo0 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

0IsE 015
HitodsE Non-deniatie francal lbiles
BARAMEN Trade and other payables - - 450958 366,829 348517 184391 = 1350695 1,350,695
fE-E8 Borrowings - ixed rate 4n - - = 10Ien 499,764 = 151743 1444293
fE-%8 Borrowings - foating rate 310 - - - 140,000 - 51,152 191,752 180,583
ERBERTR Amounts due to associates - U451 - - - - - Ui 41 1,451
ENRERER Amounts due o it ventures - 8 - - - - - 8 8
HEREHE Obligation under a fance lease 150 - I n 100 156 - i) 176
U153 450969 366,851 1,506,296 084311 5752 3301718 3207386
W4E 014
HiteREE Non-eriatie francal ebittes
BAREMER Trade and other payables = = B3I 402 36617 71908 = 122719 122719
fFE-E8 Borrowings - fied rate 527 = = = 954102 71565 = 1,679,754 597763
fBE-%8 Bomowings - foatng rete 47 - - - 8214 - 7839 140607 117044
ERBERTR Amounts cue to assoctes = L84 = = = = = L8841 28841
ERASRER Amounts due to joint ventures - 6303 - - — - - 6303 6303
RERERE QObligaton under a fiance lease 150 = Il i 100 0 - 0 %
HBER(E) Finencel guarantees (Not) = #4266 = = = = = #6 -

19410 15798 41029 133303 803850 73 3M93 3093065

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee are the maximum
amounts the Group could be forced to settle under the arrangement for
the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty
to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely than not that such
an amount will not be payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the
likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which

are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and

ask prices respectively; and

J the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.
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36. MEHERIE

FREEARFEBA

RBEHR  AEBRETAIRHELE
MEmEMNARLEREFHEEEN

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum

lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in

T respect of land and buildings as set out below:
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 6,730 4725
B FEZHF(PHEERWE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 616 3,364
7,346 8,089

BO—RBEFHABMEE=F(2014
FMEFE=F) MESREHAT

Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of two - three years

(2014: two - three years) and rentals are fixed for the lease period.

=z
AEEEBHAA The Group as lessor
ALK NEBEBBE IO AKX At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
SERESHT : tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 6,679 7,093
B FEZHF(PHEERWE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 19,892 22,937
TFig After five years 61,750 70,859
88,321 100,889

FrEmErREHBAREKIZI8E
(20145 : | E19%) »

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK

The properties held have committed tenants for the next one to

eighteen years (2014: one to nineteen years).
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs

to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$10,102,000 (2014:
HK$7,551,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by

the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 3 February 2016, the Company and Hefei Guoxuan High-Tech
Power Energy Co., Ltd. (“"Guoxuan Hitech”), an independent third
party, and the People’s Government of Lubei County, Tangshan City
entered into an agreement between the Company and Guoxuan
Hitech, to establish a company in Tangshan. The name of the company
is Energine Guoxuan (Tangshan) New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Energine Guoxuan (Tangshan)"), which is not yet establised up to
the date when the consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue and the Company will own 49%. Energine Guoxuan (Tangshan)
is principally engaged in research and development and manufacture of
power battery, research and development and application of graphene
material, as well as the application and promotion of energy storage
products in military and civil areas. Details of which is disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated |5 February 2016. At the date when
the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue, no capital
commitment on the part of the Company to be contributed pursuant

to the agreement.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

Other than disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 29, the Group has the
following significant transactions and balances with related companies:

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“‘government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under CASC which is controlled by the PRC

government.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group

(1

Included in borrowings at 31 December 2015 were
three (2014: three) loans advanced from CALT
through CASC's subsidiary, ASTF, as the trustee
totalling HK$931,032,000 or RMB780,000,000 (2014:
HK$988,756,000 or RMB780,000,000) which are
unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest ranging from
4.88% to 5.0% (2014: 3.7% to 5.0%) per annum.
Loans of HK$477,453,000 or RMB400,000,000
(2014: HK$507,054,000 or RMB400,000,000),
HK$ 155,172,000 or RMB130,000,000 (2014:
HK$ 164,793,000 or RMB130,000,000) and
HK$298,407,000 or RMB250,000,000 (2014: Nil) are
repayable in April 2016, July 2017 and March 2018

respectively.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

)

The Group also obtained loans from ASTF, a fellow
subsidiary of CALT, amounting to HK$ 119,363,000
or RMB100,000,000 (2014: Nil). The amount are
unsecured and are guaranteed by CALT, bear
fixed-rate interest ranging from at 4.13% per
annum and are repayable in December 2016.
Loans of HK$63,382,000 or RMB50,000,000
and HK$126,763,000 or RMB100,000,000 at 3|
December 2014 bore fixed-rate interest ranging
from 5.32% to 5.70% were fully repaid in 2015.

(b) Transactions with other government entities

(1

Included in borrowings at 3|1 December 2015 was
a loan of HK$40,583,000 or RMB34,000,000 (2014
HK$57,044,000 or RMB45,000,000) advanced from
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The
amount is unsecured, bears floating-rate interest at
5.09% (2014: 5.54%) per annum and is repayable in
full in November 2020.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities
(Continued)

0

The Group conducts business with other
government-related entities. The directors consider
those government-related entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group's business with them
are concemned. The Group also has certain sales and
purchases transactions with certain customers and
suppliers in which the directors are of the opinion
that it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of
the counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions are with other government-related
entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
banks which are government-related entities. A
majority of its bank deposits and bank borrowings

are with government-related entities.
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39. HEEATZXS &

(%)

(i)
(@)

(®)

FERXERER(EE) ARAT

REMRAEALZRS
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BRRR ENaERE
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FRARERBEALZ
BARSWMT :

REBRRAE
ERMEX
RERZHMBLEMK
PRI % BRI S
REAZREZMEKA
ERNHHEARARERX
FENZIFEFMERR
ZEMEFME

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(ii) Transactions with other related parties

(@)  For amounts due from/to associates, please refer to note
24.
(b)  For amounts due from/to joint ventures, please refer to
note 25.
() During the year, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:
2015 2014
FET AT
HKS$’000 HK$000
Sale of goods to associates 1,129,190 853,056
Purchase of goods from associates 433,740 331,344
Interest expenses on loan from a
shareholder, CALT 48,806 55,078
Interest expenses on loan from a fellow
subsidiary, ASTF 7,494 6,352
Interest income from a joint venture 3,805 6,033
Interest expenses on other loan due to a
non-controlling shareholder with
significant influence over a subsidiary 2,603 3,640

M2015F 128318 K&
B M ARR I BRER
) 42 1% 298,408,000 T 5%,
A K # 250,000,000 7£(2014
F 316,909,000 7T ;% A
R # 250,000,000 7T ) LA &
AEBERZEEREZE
ﬁ o

® 2015 F#H

(d) At 31 December 2015, CALT has given corporate
guarantees amounting to HK$298,408,000 or
RMB250,000,000 (2014: HK$316,909,000 or
RMB250,000,000) to ASTF to secure the credit facilities

granted to the Group.
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39. BB AT 25 HE6k 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
() BALANCES (Continued)
(i) BEMBEAEALZXS (&) (i) Transactions with other related parties (Continued)
() EIBREEABZHM (e) Compensation of key management personnel
FRATEEEABZHMM The remuneration of key management during the year was
- as follows:
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
SRk Short-term benefits 7,841 7717
BEB 218 A Post-employment benefits 18 17
7,859 7,734
FTEEEAS Z2H B H M The remuneration of key management is determined
ZEERTEARBARTS by the remuneration committee having regard to the
BRETE ° performance of individuals and market trends.
40. WHEKIB AT 40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
RWISENRAR RAT2EWNB R In December 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
g A B A R 80,884,000 7T (18 & R acquired 100% equity interest in Shanghai Hanli Machine Tool Co.
96,546,000 ) B RAEXNET TEBRA Ltd. (E/8%8 I KRBBRAF]) (“Shanghai Hanli") from Long March
A(AERZ2EMBLRR)RE LES Launch Vehicle Industry Co. Ltd. (RIEXSTLEBRATR]), a wholly
NERERAT (T LEH]) 2 100%# owned subsidiary of CALT, for a cash consideration of RMB80,884,000
wme DM NFERPEMERM - Z (equivalent to HK$96,546,000). Shanghai Hanli is principally engaged
RS ERNEEEAN - in the research and development of wind turbine in the PRC. This

transaction has been accounted for using the acquisition method.
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40. WEBMBAT )

PN B AR AR EEFENT

40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired are as follows:

RiE A
BAzEH
Amount
recognised
at the date of
acquisition

FHET
HK$’000
B EE Intangible assets 151,991
H R UG Other receivables 5,704
RITHEBRRRE Bank balances and cash 1,262
H e Other payables (62411)
96,546
BRAE Consideration transferred 96,546
B RBEE R Less: Net assets acquired (96,546)
WBEE 2B Goodwill arising on acquisition —
FEr
HK$000
WEEEZRERLIFE - Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
BetE Cash consideration (96,546)
R2015% 12 A31 Bt A Amounts included in other payables as at
HEN R 28 31 December 2015 72,673
PRI SRITAE SR R IR & Bank balances and cash acquired 1,262
bERBEARZRERRS Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
EEYRLFRE the acquisition of a subsidiary (22611)

A EEHNRARFERERNKE
AEREHRAENERRAMEEEY
ARHER

HlEE LSS HERENET  AEE
2015 12 A3 BIFFEAEBY:S « %
FEREREMIZERK -

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K

During the period, no income or expense of Shanghai Hanli was

recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the

period between the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting

period.

Had the acquisition of Shanghai Hanli been effected at the beginning

of the year, there would be insignificant effect on the Group's revenue,

profit and cash flow for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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41. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

In 2015, the Group has acquired a subsidiary (Note 40) at
HK$96,546,000. The payment of HK$72,673,000 is yet to settle and
included in other payables as at 3| December 2015.

In 2014, the Group had additionally acquired an investment property of
HK$19,522,000. The payment of HK$14,765,000 was outstanding and
included in other payables as at 3| December 2014. In 2015, an amount
of HK$10,383,000 is settled and the payment of HK$4,382,000 remains

outstanding and is included in other payables.

In 2014, the Group had used its existing inventories of HK$4,740,000 to
generate a technology know-how. Details of the technology know-how
has disclosed in note 18.

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2015 2014
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
Guarantee given to a bank, in respect of
a banking facility granted to an associate
— amount guaranteed _ 38,029
— amount utilised -_ 12,676
Guarantee given to a third party _ 6,237

ARREZAR  ERZAFELTE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the

guarantee are not significant.
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43. TEMBAT BEATR
BELEER

R20I5E K 2014F 12831 B Z KA
TEWBATE - AIRAELESE
BT

Ban

NEER

Name of company

WEAR

Subsidiaries

Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:
PERAMKRERRAA

China Aerospace

Telecommunications Limited

PEMXER(EE)ARLA
China Energine (Hong Kong) Limited

NRERERAA

New Image Development Limited

MERRARA

Crownpluss International Limited

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the

Company at 3| December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
BRITEEREZ
mE/ ERER RAgszAA
Nominal value of NG AEBEE
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
share capitall held by attributable TEER
registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2015 2014 2015 2014
% % % %
10000772 100 100 - — DEEREH
HK$10,000 Distribution of
broadband business
BT 100 100 - —  DHABKER
HK$2 Distribution of
elevator products
| T 100 100 - — REBR
HK$ | Investment holding
| BT 100 100 - — RERR
HKS! Investment holding



43. TEMBAT - BELTR

EELEEH

LE%R

Name of company

HEARZ)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
EREIRAE -

Registered and operating in the FRC:

ERBRIZERA
Beijing Energine Industry Co,, Ltd**

THEXEEHHARAT"
(ABTHEXERRLERARLR)

RAER(RE)ENEEERLA
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi)
Wind Power Co, Ltd*

RABRMER (I AR
(HRRABRHE(RINERRR)
RREMAERAERREARAR"
Inner Mongolia Energine New
Energy Development Co, Ltd

REEMASREERERERRAR
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Wind Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd

=g up s U
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

ERTEEREZ
mE/EREx REER AL
Nominal value of KAARE KEBELR
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
share capital/ held by attributable
registered capital the Company to the Group

2015 2014 2015 2014

% % % %

AR 118251,1007 - — 100 100
RMBI 18,251,100
A 50,000,000 - - 52 52
RMB50,000,000
AR 93,800,007 - - 55 55
RMB93,800,000
20,000,000/ - - 100 100
HK$20,000,000
A 80,000,000 7 - - 100 100
RMB80,000,000
AR 500000007 - - 95 95
RMB50,000,000

TEXR

Principal activities

REZRR S HEH
Investment holding

and distribution of

wind turbine generators
RERDHHRBER
Manufacture and distribution

of elevator products

ey
Operation of wind farm

MENE

Rental of properties
SER D HEE
Manufacture and distnbution
of wind turbine generators
HERAERERERER
Manufacture and distribution

of wind turbine

generators and blades
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

43. TEMBAT BEATR
RELESH »)

VENTURES (Continued)
BRTEERAZ
HE/EREER RrgszEAt
Nominal value of KAARE REBELR
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by attributable IEXH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2015 2014 2015 2014
% % % %
WEAR(E)
Subsidiaries (Continued)
EHEEMRAE : ()
Registered and operating in the PRC: (Continued)
AREMABRESHHERAR" AE¥80,000,0007C - — 564l 564l BERHBEEER
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
Composite Materials Co. Ltd* of wind blades
RARBREEFRI(RI)ER AR AR 40,000,000 7T - - 100 100 SEERSHEREM
RMB40,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
of telecommunication
products
IRMAEREMERREAR" A% 10,0000007C 65 65 - — NHEKER
Beijing CASC Energine Wind RMB10,000,000 Distribution of wind
Turbine Co. Ltd* turbine products
HRMABREERBREARAA AR 80,000,007 - - 100 100 RERDHER
RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
of wind turbine generators
BEMAERLRFAEERAR AR#200000007C - = 100 100 EENE
RMB20,000,000 Rental of properties

FERXERER(EE) ARAT
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43. TEMBAT - BELTR

EELEEH

LE%R

Name of company
BENT

Associates
REEFMATRAEE -

Registered and operating in the FRC:

IHERENETARRA
Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co, Ltd*

ENERENEEARAF
Jiin Longyuan Wind Power Co,, Ltd*###

FRESFERRARNERAT

ESMAERMANERBRAA"
Wauxi CASC Energine Xindali
Electricity Co, Ltd*

ENMAERENEEARAT
Gaizhou Energine Wind Power Co,, Ltd.

P

FMMARERZERERAR
(AR R R ARAR)

BIE2015F 12531 HILFE
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

ERTEEREZ
HE/ EREx RagszEAL
Nominal value of KAARE KEBELR
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
share capitall held by attributable TEXH
registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

2015 2014 2015 2014

% % % %

AR3333200007 - - 25 L RESER
RMB333,320,000 Operation of wind farm
AR 4382000007 - — 1535 1535 RHEE
RMB438,200,000 Operation of wind farm

AR 150,000,000 7T
RMB150,000,000

AR 120,000,000 7T
RMB120,000,000

AR 171,070,0007C
RMBI71,070,000

AR#200,000,0007T
RMB200,000,000

20

41.67

48.78

35.00

0 EHEE
Operation of wind farm
4167  BERDHEK
Manufacture and distribution

of wind turbine generators

4878 REHEZ
Operation of wind farm
3500  HERHEEEER
Manufacture and distnbution

of wind turbine products
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43. TEMBAT BEATR

EELESEH o

AL

Name of company

RELER
Joint ventures
RPEEMA L RS
Registered and operating in the PRC:
TRERREREDRERAARAR
Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine

Management Systems Co, Ltd ###

TEMABRRESBRERRAA"
Jiangsu CASC Energine Wind
Turbine Manufacture Co, Ltd*

RRAAEERIBERERAR "

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

ERTEEREZ

HE/ ERExR RrgszEAt

Nominal value of KAARE REBELR

issued ordinary Percentage of equity

share capital/ held by attributable

registered capital the Company to the Group
2015 2014 2015 2014

% % % %

16,000,000 %7 - — 49 49

US$16,000,000

AR 1000000007T - — 50 50

RMB100,000,000

AR 926100007 - — 49 49

RMB92,610,000

TEXE

Principal activities

WENBRPRER
R

Manufacture of automotive
engine management

systems and components

RERE
Manufacture of

wind turbine

E5EE
Operation of wind farm
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EELEEH

9 KRB FHZ R ERE -

o PRREERZ 2INERE -

#0154 K014 128318 A&
BERIBZIZARESENEE
EZHAMAG - A ARRIEERA
AEEHZARNBEATEN M
REAARAREBHES 1535% 2
AN

wit ARNZARBBERZARERELE
BREMREE T HEEREL - R
NAEERARSHZ ARG ERE
il -

BRI BKIL 2 RASN - ARERE L
AABRM BRI RAERRETLE
B

EXRR LXRAMEBZARFEANBEL
A BERRRAELE  NEFELRK
EXEREEZTIENAARAEER
EFECEENN  EFRR - FIE
wHBARRBERRZER LXK
EBRILK

HEREHK  WELAMERTER
ERES -

ARBEERR FEEMBARZHE
EH AR TBEAX -
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

# Sino-foreign joint entity enterprise registered in the PRC.

i Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

##  The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out

of nine directors to the board of directors of this company as at 3|
December 2015 and 2014. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group has significant influence over the company.
Accordingly, the company is accounted for as a 15.35% owned associate
of the Group.

## |n the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group and the

other shareholder have joint control of the company because decisions
on the relevant activities of the company cannot be made without both
parties agreeing.

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares
held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary shares issued

by those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of
the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets or form a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries and associates would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

reporting period.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the non-controlling
interests of non-wholly owned subsidiaries are all individually not

material.
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44, ZF \jﬂjﬁﬂf}ﬂ%ZQﬂ 44. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
@) RBEMRADAPERRERZE (@) Information about the statement of financial position of the
KaE: Company at the end of the reporting period includes:
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
EREBEE Non-current assets

e Property, plant and equipment 76 68
HEWB AR Investments in subsidiaries 1,387,319 1,387,319
JE W B B A B3R Amounts due from subsidiaries 166,704 137958
1,554,099 1,525,345
MBEE Current assets
L 8 WK Other receivables 3,307 3,404
FEUPH A R Amounts due from subsidiaries 458,136 86,749
IRITESRER S Bank balances and cash 30,924 382,372
492,367 472,525
mEAE Current liabilities
85 RHEMERK Trade and other payables 6,029 6,425
BN Borrowings 140,000 60,000
146,029 66,425
MENVEE R Net current assets 346,338 406,100
BEFE Net assets 1,900,437 1,931,445
ERRIEE Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 436,900 436,900
& Reserves 1,463,537 [,494,545
T 48 5 Total equity 1,900,437 1,931,445

RABMIEMRATR2016F3IA23BE
EECOMERRETNR  THUTES

The Company's statement of financial position was approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2016 and are signed on its

RBEE behalf by:
BRI £
Han Shuwang Li Guang
HITEF HiTEE

Executive Director Executive Director

FERXERER(EE) ARAT © 2015 F K
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b) RBEEHRARBHEFHZEHNE
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b)  Information about the reserves of the Company at the end of the

7 reporting period includes:
R4 EE KRR E RIER
Share Special Accumulated BHE
premium reserve losses Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
201451 A1 B At | January 2014 2/483,141 117,554 (1332791) 1,267,904
KEEERR Loss and total comprehensive
THAXERE expense for the year — - (22,615) (22615)
BRI Issue of shares 249,256 — — 249,256
R2014F 12 A31 B At 3| December 2014 2,732,397 [17,554 (1,355,406) 1,494,545
TEEERK Loss and total comprehensive
PHRMXAH expense for the year — — (425) (425)
EfRLEMZEE  Dividend recognised and paid
(PiFEE13) (Note 13) — (30,583) = (30,583)
R2015F 12431 B At 3| December 2015 2,732,397 86971 (1,355,831) 1,463,537

Annual Report 2015 ® China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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HZ12A31HIEEE
Year ended 31 December

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

F&T FET FET FET FE

HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$’000

BER Turnover 406,285 989,885 [,329,644 2,699,950 2,616,696

PR A A Profit before taxation 13,223 13,354 31438 94,280 74,854
I8 Taxation (11,318) (7,933) (4,049) (1,296) (2,701)

REE R Profit for the year 1,905 5421 27389 92,984 72,153

RI12831AH
At 31 December

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

F&T FET FET FET FET

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$’000

EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BEMBE Total assets 3851458 4561,601 5204318 5,905,267 5,698,802
BE%E Total liabilities (1,967,067)  (2,580/408)  (3237,164)  (3564,538) (3,449,874)

BEFAE Net assets 1,884,391 1,981,193 1,967,154 2,340,729 2,248,928

TEMABRER(EE) BRLT ® 2015 FRK
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